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VISION 

The Ports Regulator of South Africa will be regarded na�onally  and interna�onally as a world-class 

ins�tu�on  which sets the standards for economic regula�on in commercial mari�me ports. 

MISSION

The Mission of the Ports Regulator of South Africa is to:  

▪  Excercise economic regula�on of the South African ports system consistent with Government’s 

strategic objec�ves; 

▪  Support the development of the ports industry and system; 

▪  Promote equity of access to ports and to facilitates and services provided in ports; and 

▪  Monitor the ac�vi�es of the Na�onal Ports Authority to ensure that it performs its func�on in

accordance with the Na�onal Ports Act, 12 of 2005 (“the Act”). 

VALUES 

The Ports Regulator of South Africa adheres to the values of: 

▪  The Cons�tu�on of the Republic of South Africa, with special reference to the crea�on of a 

democra�c, non-racial, non-sexist, fair society in South Africa; 

▪  Stakeholder focus; 

▪ Fairness; 

▪  Integrity; 

▪  Transparency, accountability and responsibility; 

▪  Honesty and trust; and 

▪  Respect for the trust placed in it for the proper use of taxpayer and stakeholder resources.

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES 

The strategic objec�ves of the Ports Regulator of South Africa are: 

▪  Establishing all elements of the regulatory framework within its mandate;  

▪  Developing the capacity to deal with all the output requirements of the organisa�on; 

▪  Establishing its reputa�on as an organisa�on with integrity focused on delivery; 

▪  Ensuring that all port sector par�cipants comply with the Act; and 

▪ Suppor�ng the development of the port system and the port regulatory system architecture. 
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1. Accoun�ng Authority Foreword 

The Ports Regulator has answered to President Ramaphosa’s call to 

reduce port and other administered prices in the economy, in approving 

a decrease in Port Authority tariffs of -6,27% for 2019-20, as announced 

at our press conference on 30 November 2018.  

Mindful of our slowing economic growth over the tariff period , coupled 

with the need for investment in the country’s port infrastructure , the 

Regulator opted to add R539 million to the Excessive Tariff Increase 

Margin Credit (ETIMC) to ensure that overall average tariffs in the outer 

two years of the period under review and beyond, remain close to the 

infla�on target band, bringing the balance in this savings facility to over 
R3,15 bn. 

Also in support of economic development, the Port Tariff Incen�ves (the PTIP) which was developed in 

the previous year con�nues. Whilst no award was made in this respect, The PTIP con�nues to form 

serve as a mechanism by which cross- subsidies within the port tariff structure may be implemented, 

quan�fied, as well as be fair and in the public interest. A reduc�on in tariff, if jus�fied and approved, 

will be granted through the amendment of a specific tariff line. Interested par�es may apply via the 

PRSA website where the applica�on process is explained in detail and forms are available.  

The performance incen�ve system, published as part of the current tariff methodology, called 

Weighted Efficiency Gains on Opera�ons (WEGO), allows the Ports Authority as a regulator of 

operators, to  gain or lose up to 5% profit for up to 10% increase or decline (respec�vely) on year on 

year performance for a basket of measurable indicators. The 2019/20 tariff process will herald the first 

�me in which a WEGO award/disincen�ve will be determined under this important programme and

Port Consulta�ve Commi�ees across the country will play a key role in the consulta�ons  in this regard. 

South Africa’s first formal Methodology for the Valua�on of the Regulatory Asset Base of the Na�onal 

Ports Authority was completed and published  by the end of the last financial year, and the 2019/20 

tariff announced on 30 November 2018 was the first in which a tariff was based on the new regulatory 

asset base valua�on framework . This has allowed the Regulator to  significantly lower tariffs  resul�ng 

in savings to port users whilst maintaining the con�nued sustainability of the Na�onal Ports Authority.  

Over recent years, the organisa�on produced the first Port Sector Review, and Regulatory Review 

done by stakeholder consulta�on and surveys. Other studies over the years included the ongoing 

Global Ports Pricing Comparator Study  (now the seventh itera�on of the study) , the Capacity U�lisa�on 

study for SA ports, and the Ports Efficiency Benchmarking Study; all valuable to reduce the cost of 

doing business with South Africa, and vital to the success of the Na�onal Development Plan and our 

economic success as a country.  The Regulator’s compliance monitoring work included research on  

B-BBEE and equity of access in our ports, and analysing Ports Act compliance. In this regard, the 

Regulator has published its Baseline Equity of Access Report which analyses B-BBEE implementa�on

by companies in our port system and analyses the extent of transforma�on in the various categories that 

make up the structure of the ports industry in South Africa. This ‘baseline’ report based on 2015/16 

B-BBEE cer�ficate informa�on will serve as a yards�ck for measuring progress on transforma�on in the 

ports sector in future years. 

Mr. Thaba Mufamadi
Chairperson of Ports Regulator

01/04/2018 to 30/11/2018
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with its stakeholders on its Third Mul� -

Year Tariff Methodology (MYM3) , and con�nue its work in the transforma�o

of the sector whilst con�nuing its analy�cal and compliance work. We hope to be able to enhance the 

capacity of the Regulator as required by the NDP, and fill key unfunded posts as greater financial 

resources become available 

I would like to recognise the efforts of the Regulator Members, staff and management for their work 

in ensuring the success of the Regulator. I would like to 

____________________________________

Mr. Mahesh Fakir

Delegated Accoun�ng Authority 

Ports Regulator

 

of South Africa 

welcome and congratulate our new Minister, 

Mr Fikile Mbalula, and Deputy Minister Ms Dikeledi Magadzi, and wish them every success in the sixth 

administra�on of state.

In the year ahead the Regulator intends to develop and consult 

n and B-BBEE par�cipa�on 
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2. Chief Execu�ve Officer’s Report 

  
For a number of years now, direct stakeholder feedback con�nues to indicate 
high regard for the Regulator with scores averaging in the region of 75-80% on a 
number of key criteria including its roadshow informa�on presenta�ons, 
neutrality, independence,  efficiency, effec�veness and acceptance of Regulator’s 
decisions.   
 

There was also much support expressed by stakeholders and media coverage 

over the year, for Regulator ini�a�ves such as the PTIP (Port Tariff Incen�ve 

Programme), the WEGO incen�ve (Weighted Efficiency Gain on Opera�ons), as well as the much 

awaited revalua�on of the Regulatory Asset Base. However, the most notable support was expressed 

by stakeholders on the Regulator’s announcement of a decrease in Port Authority tariffs of -6,27% for 

2019-20, at our press conference on 30 November 2018 , in which we also announced 10% reduc�ons 

in container and automo�ve      cargo dues, zero increase in shipping line charges, the reduc�on through 

capping of a number of break-bulk tariffs, as well as the con�nua�on of the SA -flag vessel incen�ve.  

Having achieved much progress over the medium term in which the Regulator published amongst 

others, a 10 year Port Tariff Strategy, the second mul�-year Tariff Methodology (MYM2), a Ports 

Sector Review, a Regulatory Review, as well as studies benchmarking South African ports to their 

global peers both with respect to pricing as well as performance, the design of the ports performance 

incen�ve system  within the tariff methodology, the development of a Valua�on Methodology for the 

NPA Regulatory Asset Base, and the development and launch of a framework for port tariff incen�ves  

for beneficia�on and other economic impera�ves that are in the public interest, the past year was 

dedicated mainly to consulta�ons on the implementa�on on of the valua�on methodology and the other 

ini�a�ves men�oned.  

Published documents include the sixth itera�on of the global ports pricing study, and the Baseline 

Equity of Access Report on the implementa�on of B -BBEE in the ports sector. Country wide 

consulta�ons were held in conjunc�on with the Ports Consulta�ve    Commi�es  (PCC’s) and other 

stakeholders on WEGO and other port industry development impera�ves, including discussions 

dealing with the incorpora�on of the Na�onal Ports Authority into a wholly owned subsidiary of 

Transnet, in terms of secton 3(2) of the Na�onal Ports Act.   

The performance incen�ve system,  called Weighted Efficiency Gains on Opera�ons (WEGO), is based 

on five key indicators that were consulted with the NPA and Port Consulta�ve Commi�ees  in the 

major commercial ports. The system which rewards year on year improvements in performance and 

penalises deteriora�ng performance, allows the Ports Authority, to gain or lose up to 5% profit for up 

to 10% increase or decline on a propor�onal basis, with the Regulator poten�ally adop�ng new focus  

area KPI’s annually and upward revision of weigh�ngs for lower performing KPI’s. This year heralds the 

first WEGO award. 

For many years, ports sector stakeholders have contested the extent of the regulatory asset base of 

the NPA on which a return is calculated and deprecia�on allowed within the Required Revenue 

Methodology adopted by the Regulator.  In this regard, a�er consulta�on, a Record of Decision on the  

Methodology for the Valua�on of the Regulatory Asset Base of the Na�onal Ports Authority was  

published in March 2018 and became part of the consulta�ons in the process of the determina�on of 

the 2019/20 tariff, resul�ng in significantly lower tariffs with direct savings to port users and the 

economy, whilst s�ll maintaining the con�nued financial sustainability of the Na�onal Ports Authority.  

Mahesh Fakir 

Ports Regulator of South Africa 

  
CEO
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 We achieved over 85% of APP targets in 2014/15 and 2015/16, and 100% in 2016/17 and 2017/18 

(audited). We once again achieved 100% of our performance targets for the 2018/19 financial year.

I would like to thank the Chairperson Mr Thaba Mufamadi and Regulator Members whose three year 

term extended by the Minister by three months in terms of the Na�onal Ports Act, came to an end on 

30 November 2018. I thank the Minister, Deputy Minister and the Senior Managers and staff of the 

Department of Transport, and look forward to working together to enhance and capacitate the Ports 

Regulator and the mari�me sector as a whole. 

I would like to thank my staff and senior management for their dedicated service and their consistent 

achievement of the deliverables set out in the APP and more.  In the year ahead the Regulator will 

focus on developing and consul�ng stakeholders on the next mul�-year tariff methodology . We will 

also con�nue the work on monitoring the implementa�on of B-BBEE targets as envisaged in Ports Act 

Regula�ons and in the interests of transforma�on. In line with the Na�onal Development Plan, we will 

strive to enhance the capacity of the Regulator, focus on reducing administered prices in the ports 

system, and strive to achieve all the deliverables expected of us in the sixth administra�on of our 

democra�c state.   

 

Mahesh Fakir 

CEO  &  Accoun�ng Officer 

Ports Regulator of South Africa 
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3. Corporate Report 

The Regulator is the independent South African economic regulator for the ports industry. This 

organisa�on came into being on 04 August 2005 on the promulga�on of the Act. The establishment 

of the Regulator was a key component of the ‘White paper on Na�onal       Commercial Ports Policy, 2002’. 

The Act and the policy establishes the ins�tu�onal framework for the ports industry, as well as 

ar�cula�ng a range of mechanisms cri�cal to the stable governance thereof from an economic 

perspec�ve  . This governance framework was further developed in the publica�on and coming into 

effect of Regula�ons by the Minister of Transport in November 2007, and the Direc�ves issued by the 

Regulator coming into effect on 06 August 2009. 

The Members of the Ports Regulator (1 April 2018 to 30 November 2018) were

▪  Mr. Thaba Mufamadi (Chairperson); 

▪  Ms. Anjue Hirachund  

▪  Ms. Thato Tsautse; 

▪  Ms. Gerdileen Taylor; 

▪  Adv. Gugulethu Thimane; 

▪  Mr. Lindelwe Mabandla; 

▪  Mr. Aubrey Ngcobo; 

▪  Mr. Andile Mahlalutye   and ; 

▪ Mr. Mahesh Fakir (Member Ex-Officio - CEO; delegated Accoun�ng Authority from 1 December 2018)
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 Mr. Thaba Mufamadi 

Chairperson 

Mr. Aubrey Ngcobo 

Audit Commi�ee 

Mr. Andile Mahlalutye 

Audit Commi�ee 

Ms. Thato Tsautse 

Regulatory Commi�ee  

(Chairperson)

Mr. Lindelwe Mabandla 

Human Resource Commi�ee 

 

Ms. Anjue Hirachund 

HR Commi�ee Chairperson 

Ms. Gerdileen Taylor 

Regulatory Commi�ee  

Adv. Gugulethu Thimane 

Human Resource Commi�ee 

 

Mahesh Fakir 

CEO & Accoun�ng Officer 

01/09/2015 to 30/11/2018 01/09/2015 to 30/11/2018 01/09/2015 to 30/11/2018

01/09/2015 to 30/11/2018
01/09/2015 to 30/11/2018 01/09/2015 to 30/11/2018

01/09/2015 to 30/11/2018 01/09/2015 to 30/11/2018

 



 

 

Page 10 Ports Regulator Annual Report

4. Key Ac�vi�es and Outputs in the Mandate Areas of the Ports Regulator: 

4.1.
 

Administra�on
 

4.1.1. Financial Management 

Sec�on 31 (1)(a) of the Act states that: ‘The Regulator consists of a chairperson and a minimum of six 

and a maximum of twelve other members appointed by the Minster for a period of up to five years’. 

The term of office   for the Regulator members expired on 31 August 2018  and was extended for a 3  

months period up to 30 November 2018. There were no more extensions a�er November 2018, as a 

result the en�ty had no Regulator members from December 2018 up to 31 March 2019.   This 

affected the opera�ons of the en�ty especially with regard to Key Performance Indicators that 

require Regulator approval. The Tribunal func�on was also affected in that it is on hold un�l new 

Regulator members are appointed. It must be remembered that Regulator members cons�tute a 

tribunal and their absence means that this func�on is not possible to perform.  

The Regulator Members worked �relessly to grasp the business processes of the Regulator  even 

further especially on technical issues rela�ng to Tribunal and Economic Regula�on, as well as to 

ensure delivery of the Performance Agreement and the Annual Performance Plan (APP). 

Administra�vely, the Secretariat has developed, annually reviewed policies and procedures covering 

all areas of administra�on and support. Further, strategies and frameworks have been updated in 

order to guide business processes with regards to the finance, human resource, informa�on 

technology  and risk management func�ons of the en�ty. The constant maintenance in terms of 

compliance and reviews has resulted in a system of strong internal controls and adequate 

governance prac�ces ensuring
 
minimal (if any) instances of non-compliance by the Regulator. 

Seciton 42 (1) of the Act makes provison for the Regulator’s funding. According to the Act, the funds 

of the Regulator consist of: (a) Money appropriated by Parliament ; (b) interest on investments ; and 

(c) fees charged for the filing of complaints or appeals with the Regulator. However, as evidenced in 

the financials of previous years, these monies are not always adequate for the opera�ons of the 

Regulator.   

As a result, several projects take much longer to be implemented un�l addi�onal  funding is 

received. In an a�empt to mitgate this issue, a funding model was prepared, aimed at reducing the 

burden on the fiscus by proposing that a small regulatory fee be charged to the regulated en�ty.  

A number of alternate op�ons were presented to the Shareholding Minister at the previous Annual 

General Mee�ng (AGM) and were further presented to the Por�olio Commi�ee on Transport. 

However, implementa�on of the funding model will require amendments to the Act and it is 

understood that such a process may take a considerable amount of �me. Therefore, the Department 

of Transport priori�sed the amendments in the 2018/19 business    plan in order to monitor and track 

progress on the amendments process. This has also been discussed at Por�olio Commi�ee level.  

The funding model has been recommended by the Regulator to the Department of Transport and was 

published as a bill for public comments. It is an�cipated that the bill should be passed by both 

houses of Parliament in the 2019/20 financial year before being implemented. 
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Measures were put in place during the  MTEF budget process to request further baseline funding to 

the Regulator in order to ensure con�nued sustainability, the applica�on    for increase in baseline was 

approved for the medium term. 

During the 2019 Medium-Term Expenditure Framework (‘MTEF’) budget process, there was baseline 

funding that was further advanced to the Regulator. This resulted in cost pressures  being mi�gated 

and reduced. It must be noted that approval was obtained    from Na�onal Treasury in July 2018 to  

retain unspent surplus reserves and u�lise them. 

The Figure below indicates the revenue posi�on for the past six financial years.    

Graph 1: Revenue Generated by the Regulator 

 

The Table below indicates the revenue types actually generated during the year and the previous 

year.  

Table 1: Income Classifica�on for the Regulator 

Item 2018/2019                  R (000) 2017/2018                    R (000) 

Department of Transport  (transfers)  25 619 22 489 

Interest income 1 021 960 

Complaints and Appeals 6 6 

Sundry Income 92 95 

Profit on disposal of asset  0 14 

Total  26 738 23 564 

The Regulator has applied all possible measures to ensure that the expenditure is within the 

approved budget in order to avoid over expenditure on the total budget. Graph two below, illustrates 

the expenditure pa�ern of the Regulator for the past six financial years. The observa�ons and 

concerns made by the Regulator Members were communicated to the the Minister of 
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6

including but not limited to: providing guidance, support, and training to Members, preparing and circula�ng 
applicable informa�on/ documents, dra�ing an Annual Work Plan, performing evalua�ons and preparing and
circula�ng minutes for mee�ngs.

For the period 1   April 2018 to 7   October 2018, Adv. Sohana Goordeen performed the Company / 
Regulator Secretary role.
On the 8   October 2018, Ms. Kathleen Hall was appointed on a permanent basis as the Company / Regulator 
Secretary. 

The Table below explains how the Regulator, and in the absence of the Regulator the delegated Accoun�ng 
Authority (as of the 1st December 2018 to 31st March 2019), applied good governance prac�ces during the
financial year under review in accordance with the approved Governance and Compliance Checklist. 

th

th
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The Regulator Charter and 
Audit and Risk Charter 
provided for the establishment
of an Audit and Risk 
Commi�ee. The ARC met 4
�mes during the financial year. 
The Regulator appointed an 
independent Chairperson for 
the Commi�ee.

In terms of the Regulator
Charter, the Regulator is 
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responsible for the governance 
of risk. 
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With the assistance of internal
audit and AGSA, the en��es 
annual report was reviewed
and integrity thereof assessed 
in terms of the financial 
statements and disclosures 
and performance informa�on.

The internal auditors submits 
quarterly formal reports 
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principles are to be applied 
on a propor�onal basis to 
the size and type of 
organisa�on being governed. 

mee�ng of any sub-
commi�ee mee�ng or 
Regulator Mee�ng.  

Principle 2.16  The Minister (in terms of the 
Na�onal Ports Act 12 of 
2005, has elected a chairman 
of the Regulator who is an 
independent non-execu�ve 
director. The CEO of the 
en�ty does not also fulfil the 
role of chairman of the  
Regulator.  

Applied  A Chairman was elected, and 
the roles and responsibili�es
of the Chairman are separate
as provided for in the 
Regulator Charter.  

 

 

Principle 2.17 The Regulator must establish 
a framework for the 
delega�on of authority 
which is updated annually. 

Applied  While retaining overall 
accountability and subject to 
ma�ers reserved to itself, 
the Regulator has 
established a delega�on of 
authority framework to the 
CEO, CFO & other Execu�ve 
Managers to run the day-to-
day affairs of the en�ty 
subject to an approved 
framework.  

Delega�ons of Authority 
were reviewed and 
approved by the Regulator at 
its mee�ng held on the 23 rd  
May 2018. 
 

Principle 2.18 The Regulator comprises of a 
majority of non-execu�ve 
members who are 
independent. 

Applied  The Minister appoints the 
Members of the Regulator 
by means of a nomina�on 
process.  

Ten Members were 
appointed to the Ports 
Regulator effec�ve 1 
September 2015 for a three 
year period, and of which 
certain appointments were 
extended by the Minister for 
a further three month period 
un�l 30th November 2018. 

Principle 2.19 Members are appointed 
through a formal process. 

Applied  To ensure a rigorous and 
transparent process, any 
new appointment of a 
Regulator Member is 
considered by the Minister 
of Transport in accordance 
with the Na�onal Ports Act 
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based on a call for 
nomina�ons. 

The selec�on process 
involves considering the 
exis�ng balance of skills and 
experience on the Regulator 
and a con�nual process of 
assessing the needs of the 
organisaton.  

Principle 2.20  The induc�on of and ongoing 
training, as well as the 
development of directors are 
conducted through a formal 
process 

Applied  A formal induc�on 
programme is available for 
new Members, including 
background material and 
mee�ngs with Senior 
Management. 

All Members are invited to 
on-site visits and to the AGM 
(strategy mee�ng) with 
Senior Management. 
Ongoing training includes 
workshops presented by 
external advisors and 
addi�onal training is 
facilitated as required. 

Principle 2.21  The Regulator is assisted by 
a competent, suitably 
qualified and experienced 
Company Secretary. The 
Company Secretary 
appointment is approved by 
the Regulator in accordance 
with the en�ty’s recruitment 
policies. 

Applied  

Principle 2.22  The evalua�on of the
Regulator and its 
commi�ees is performed 
every second year.  

Applied  The performance of the 
Regulator as a whole and the 
performance of each Sub-
commi�ee is evaluated 
annually.  

Principle 2.23  The Regulator delegates 
certain func�ons to well- 
structured commi�ees 
without abdica�ng its own 
responsibili�es. 

Applied  The Regulator has three 
Commi�ees that assist it in 
discharging its du�es and 
responsibili�es – the ARC, 
the Regulatory Commi�ee 
and the HR & Remunera�on 
Commi�ee. These 
Commi�ees operate in

The Regulator approved the 
appointment of a permanent 
Company / Regulator Secretary
during the financial year.  



accordance with write and 
Terms of Reference 
approved by the Regulator.  
The Regulator Charter allows 
for the delega�on of 
func�ons to commi�ees.  

Principle 2.26  The Company has disclosed 
the remunera�on of each 
individual director and 
prescribed officer.  

Applied  The remunera�on of 
Members and prescribed 
officers is included in the 
Member’s report of the 
Annual Report. 

Principle 2.27  The en�ty’s shareholding 
ministry should approve the 
en�tys remunera�on policy.  

Applied  The Minister of Transport as 
the PRSA’s shareholding 
Minister approves the 
PRSA’s remunera�on 
structure. Any changes 
thereto will require the 
Ministry’s approval. 

 

King IV Reference King IV Principle Applied/Not 
Applied 

Commentary
 

Outcome 3: Adequate and Effec�ve Control 

Principle 8/8.1 The Regulator should ensure 
that the en�ty has an 
efffec�ve and independent 
audit commi�ee.  

Applied  The Regulator Charter 
provides that an effec�ve 
and independent ARC must 
be in place together with the 
ARC Terms of Reference. The 
effec�veness of the 
Commi�ee is evaluated 
annually by the Members, 
and assessed by the 
Company Secretary and 
external auditors (AGSA). 

Principle 8.2 Audit Commi�ee members 
are suitably skilled and 
experienced. 

Applied  All Members of the ARC are 
independent non- execu�ve 
Members, who where 
applicable sit as members of 
other Audit Commi�ees and 
are suitably skilled to fulfil 
the mandate of the Audit 
Commi�ee as determined by 
the Regulator.  

Principle 8.3 The Audit Commi�ee is
chaired by an independent 
non- execu�ve member. 

Applied  The Regulator has appointed 
a suitably qualified 
Independent non-execu�ve 
Chairman to chair the ARC. 

Principle 8.4  The Audit Commi�ee 
oversees annual repor�ng. 

Not Applied  
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In the absence of ARC, the 
delegated Accoun�ng Authority
was responsible for the 
oversight. 
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Principle 8.5  The Audit Commi�ee has 
ensured that a combined 
assurance model has been 
applied which provides a co - 
ordinated approach to all 
assurance ac�vi�es. 

Applied  The en�ty has implemented 
a combined assurance model 
with the assistance of the 
internal auditors and the 
AGSA as the external 
auditors whose input is 
monitored by the ARC. 

Principle 8.6  The Audit Commi�ee    should 
sa�sfy itself of the exper�se, 
resources and experience of 
the en�ty’s finance func�on. 

Applied  The ARC oversees that the 
CFO and the finance 
department deliver 
adequately to the 
organisa�on. 

Principle 8.7  The Audit Commi�ee is  
responsible for overseeing 
the internal audit process 
and is responsible for 
overseeing the internal audit 
func�on. 

Applied  The ARC is responsible for 
overseeing the internal audit 
func�on and ensuring that a 
risk based audit coverage 
plan is approved together
with the budget.  

  

Principle 8.8  The governing body should 
allocate the oversight of risk 
governance to a dedicated 
Audit Commi�ee to assist 
the board in carrying out its 
risk responsibili�es. 

Applied  The ARC is responsible for 
overseeing risk 
management, which 
responsibility is made part of 
its Terms of Reference 
approved by the Regulator 
and the ARC.  

Principle 8.9  The Audit Commi�ee is 
responsible for overseeing 
the external audit process. 

Not Applied  

Principle 8.10  The Audit Commi�ee 

reports to the Regulator and 
Applied  The ARC reports to the 

Regulator at each Regulator

In the absence of ARC, the 
delegated Accoun�ng Authority
oversaw this process. 

the Shareholders as to how 
it has discharged its du�es. 

mee�ng. 
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Principle 8.11  For some companies the 
establishment of a social and 
ethics commi�ee is a 
statutory requirement. The 
governing body of any 
organisa�on not so obliged 
should consider alloca�ng 
oversight of, and repor�ng 
on, organisa�onal ethics, 
responsible corporate 
ci�zenship, and sustainable 
development and 
stakeholder rela�onships to 
a dedicated commi�ee, or 
adding it to the 
responsibili�es of another 
commi�ee as is appropriate 
for the organisa�on. 

Applied  The core func�ons of the 
Regulator incorporate 
compliance and Economic 
regula�on, and in 
recogni�on thereof the PRSA 
has adopted a Code of 
Conduct and Business Ethics 
Policy. 

Principle 14  The governing body should 
ensure that the organisa�on 
remunerates fairly, 
responsibly and 
transparently so as to 

promote the achievement of 
strategic objec�ves and 
posi�ve outcomes in the 
short, medium and long 
term. 

Applied  The Regulator has approved 
a Remunera�on policy that 
gives effect to its direc�on 
on fair, responsible and 
transparent remunera�on 
prac�ces together with a 
Short Term Incen�ve and 
Reward and Recogni�on 
policy. 

King IV Reference King IV Principle Applied/Not 
Applied 

Commentary 

Outcome 3: The Governance of Risk 
Principle 11.1 The Regulator is responsible 

for the governance of risk. 
Applied In terms of the Regulator 

Charter, the Regulator is 
responsible for the 
governance of risk.

Principle 11.2  The Regulator should 
determine the levels of risk 
tolerance. 

Applied  The risk register is assessed 
and amended annually by 
Management and overseen 
by the ARC commi�ee in 
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terms of which risks are 
assessed for levels of 
tolerance. The final risk 
register is adopted by the 
Regulator.  

Principle 11.3 The Regulator has delegated 
to management the 
responsibility to design, 
implement and monitor the 
risk management plan. 

Applied  Quarterly reports to the
ARC in terms of the 
Risk Management Plan 
approved annually by the 
Audit and Risk Commi�ee.  
In terms of the ARC Charter, 
Management designs, 
implements and monitors 
the plan and is accountable 
for embedding the risk 
management process in the 
en�ty. 

 

Principle 11.4 The Regulator must ensure 
that risk assessments are 
performed on a con�nual;
basis and con�nual
monitoring of risk by 
Management. 

Applied  Risk Assessments are 
performed annually by 
Management. Risk is 
addressed in terms of risk 
plan and implementa�on of 
controls monitored by 
Management and reported 
to the Regulator.  

Principle 11.5 The Regulator should ensure 
that frameworks and 
methodologies are 
implemented to increase the 
probability of an�cipa�ng
unpredictable risks. 

Applied  Risk management 

framework developed with 
Internal Audit. 
Legal/compliance func�on 
implemented to an�cipate 
risks to the organisa�on 
through opera�ons or new 
legisla�on. 

Principle 11.6 The Regulator should ensure 
that management considers 
and implements appropriate 
risk responses. 

Applied  Risk Assessments are 
performed annually by 
Management. Risk is 
addressed in terms of risk 
plan and implementa�on of 
controls monitored by 
Management and reported 
to the Regulator.  

Principle 11.7 The Regulator receives 
assurance regarding the 
effec�veness of the risk 
management process. 

Applied The internal audit func�on 
provides assurance to the 
ARC and the Regulator 
regarding the efficiency of the 
risk management process. 

Principle 11.8 The Regulator to ensure that 
there are processes in place 
enabling complete, �mely 
and accurate risk disclosure 

Applied  Risk framework assists with
this and the AGSA’s report is 
contained in the annual 
report which is available to 
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and the effec�veness of risk 
management 

all stakeholders. Also report 
risk areas to the execu�ve 
authority annually and risk 
management report to the 
Regulator quarterly.  

King IV Reference King IV Principle Applied/Not 
Applied 

Commentary 

Outcome 3: IT Governance 

Principle 12  The governing body is 
responsible for the 
governance of technology 
and informa�on by se�ng 
the direc�on for how 
technology and informa�on 
should be approached and 
addressed in the 
organisa�on. 

Applied  The IT Governance 
Framework, including 
processes, procedures and 
structures, was adopted by 
the Regulator which 
delegates implementa�on 
thereof to Management.  

 

Principle 12.1  IT has been aligned with the 
performance and 
sustainability objec�ves of 
the en�ty. 

Applied  The IT Governance 

Framework, including the IT 
strategy and policies and 
procedures, ensure 
alignment with the 
performance and 
sustainability of the en�ty. 

Principle 12.2 The Regulator should 
delegate to management the 
responsibility for 
implementa�on of an IT 
governance framework. 

Applied  Management has been 
delegated by the Regulator 
to implement the IT 
structures, processes and 
policies to execute the IT 
governance framework. 

Principle 12.3 The Regulator monitors and 
evaluates significant IT 
investments and 
expenditure. 

Applied  The framework includes the 
management of informa�on 
assets and expenditure on IT 
systems. There is a capital 
approval process in place 
and a specific approval 
process is followed for 

disposals. 

Principle 12.4 IT risks should form an 
integral part of the en�ty’s 
risk management. 

Applied  The IT risks form part of the 
risk register, together with 
management strategies of 
the iden�fied risks 

Principle 12.5 The Regulator ensures that 
informa�on assets are 
managed effec�cvely. 

Applied  The IT governance Strategy 
delegates the implementa�on
thereof to Management, 
who reports thereon 
to the Regulator
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where appropriate. 
Management of IT assets is 
outsourced to an IT service 
provider.  

Principle 12.6 A risk commi�ee should 
assist the Regulator in 
carrying out its IT 
responsibili�es. 

Applied  The IT Governance 
Framework, including 
processes, procedures and 
structures, was adopted by 
the Regulator which 
delegates implementa�on
thereof to Management. In 
terms of the Regulator and 
ARC Charter, the ARC is 
delegated to assist the 
Regulator with IT 
governance. 

 

King IV Reference King IV Principle 
Applied/Not 
Applied 

Commentary 

Outcome 3: Compliance with applicable laws, codes, rules and standards 

Principle 13  The Regulator ensures that 
the en�ty complies with 
applicable laws and 
considers adherence to non -
binding rules, codes and 
standards. 

Applied The en�ty has a Legal 
Department which oversees 
regulatory and compliance 
matters.  This Department 
has developed the legal and 
regulatory framework 
universally applicable to the 
Regulator. 

Principle 13.1  The Regulator and each 
individual member has a 
working understanding of 
the effect of applicable laws, 
rules, codes and standards 
on the organisa�on and its 
business 

Applied  On-going member training is 
provided. Updates on 
applicable laws, rules and 
codes are provided by the 
legal compliance func�on 
and updates are included, 
where applicable, on the 
agendas of Regulator and 
sub-Commi�ee mee�ngs. 

Principle 13.2 Compliance risk should form 
an integral part of the 
en�tys risk management 
process. 

Applied  The risk of non -compliance 
forms part of the opera�onal 
risk assessments and 
compliance assessments are 
performed by the Legal 
division. The risk of non- 
compliance is included on 
the en�ty’s risk register.  
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Principle 13.3  The Regulator should 
delegate to management the 
responsibility for 
implementa�on and 
execu�on of effec�ve 
compliance management. 

Applied Quarterly compliance 
framework updated and 
reported on to the 
Regulator.  

Principle 13.4  The governing body should 
receive periodic independent 

assurance on 
the effec�veness of 
compliance management 

Applied  Internal Audit provides this 
assurance. 

King IV Reference King IV Principle Applied/Not 
Applied 

Commentary 

Outcome 3: Internal Audit 

Principle 15 The governing body should 
ensure that assurance 
services and func�ons 
enable an effec�ve control 
environment and that these 
support the integrity of 
informa�on for internal 
decision-making and of the 
organisa�on’s external 
reports. 

Applied The Internal Audit Charter 
requires the performance of 
risk based internal audits. 

Principle 15.1 Regulator should ensure that 
there is an effec�ve risk 
based internal audit. 

Applied  

Principle 15.2 Internal Audit should provide 
a wri�en assessment of the 
effec�veness of the en�ty’s 
system of  internal controls 
and risk management. 

Applied 

 

 

Principle 15.3  Internal Audit should be 
strategically posi�oned to 
achieve its objec�ves.

Applied  The Chief Internal Audit 
director reports directly to 
the Chairman of the ARC and 

is invited to a�end all ARC 
mee�ngs.  

 

King IV Reference King IV Principle 
Applied/Not 
Applied 

Commentary 

Outcome 4: Legi�macy 

Governing Stakeholder Rela�onships 

Principle 16 In the execu�on of its 
governance role and 
responsibili�es, the 

governing should adopt a 
stakeholder-inclusive 

Applied  The en�ty has a formal 
stakeholder engagement 
framework approved by the 
Regulator which determines 
how Management engages 

The risk based internal audit 
plan is approved on an annual 
basis 

The internal auditor submits 
quarterly formal reports 
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approach that balances the 
needs, interests and 
expecta�on of material 
stakeholders in the best 
interests of the organisa�on.  

 

its stakeholders and 
manages the various 
rela�onships. Stakeholder 
engagement is a standing 
Regulator Agenda item. 

Principle 16.1  The Regulator should 
delegate to management to 
proac�vely deal with 
stakeholder rela�onships. 

Applied  Management facilitates 
stakeholder commen�ng 
processes on important 
mandate areas of the PRSA 
e.g. Tariff Applica�on Tariff
Methodology and Tariff 
Strategy processes. 

Principle 16.2  Transparent and effec�ve 
communica�on with 
stakeholders is essen�al to 
building and maintaining 
their trust and confidence 

Applied  Effec�ve stakeholder 
communica�on 
demonstrated through 
surveys and the colla�on of 
results a�er each 
stakeholder engagement 
process. Execu�ve  authority 
confidence in the PRSA 
demonstrated through AGM 
feedback. 

Principle 16.3  The governing body should 
approve policy that 
ar�culates and gives effect 
to its direc�on on 
stakeholder relatonships  

Applied  Stakeholder engagement 
oversight is delegated by the 
the Regulatory Commi�ee. 

 
 

King IV Reference King IV Principle 
Applied/Not 
Applied 

Commentary 

Outcome 2: Good performance and Value crea�on 

Principle 5 The Regulator should ensure 
the integrity of the 
organisa�on’s annual report.  

 

Applied  

Principle 5.1  Sustainability repor�ng  and 
risk and financial disclosures 
should be integrated with 
the en�ty’s Financial 
repor�ng. 

Applied  The organisa�on in its 
Annual Report does assess 
the en�ty from a risk and 
financial perspec�ve as a 
going concern. 

 

Principle 5.2 Sustainability repor�ng  and 
disclosure should be 

Applied  Financial disclosures made in 
the Annual Report are 

With the assistance of AGSA 
and the CFO the annual report
was reviewed and evaluated
prior to approval by the 
delegated Accoun�ng 
Authority
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independently assured. independently assured by 
the internal auditors and the 
AGSA. As a Regulator, there 
are no sustainability 
implica�ons. 

Principle 6  The governing body should 
serve as the focal point and 
custodian of corporate 
governance in the 
organisa�on.  

Applied  The Regulator exercises its 
leadership role by se�ng
and reviewing the strategic 
direc�on and ensuring 
accountability for 
organisa�onal performance 
by means of repor�ng  and 
disclosure.  

Principle 6.1  The governing body should 
ensure that its role, 
responsibili�es, membership 
and procedural conduct are 
documented in a charter 
which is regularly reviewed 
to guide its effec�ve 
func�oning. 

Applied  The Regulator operates 
according to an approved 
charter.  

 

4.2.1. Compliance Monitoring of the Na�onal Ports Authority (NPA): 

The Regulator in fulfilling this role also strives to ensure compliance with the broader legisla�ve

framework applicable in the ports environment including key pieces of legisla�on inter alia the  

Na�onal Ports Act, 2005,  the Public Finance Management Act, 1999, the Labour Rela�ons Act, 66 of 1995, 

and the Basic Condi�on of Employment Act, 75 of 1997, the Promo�on of Access to Informa�on Act, 2 of 

2000 as well as the Promo�on of Administra�ve Jus�ce Act, 3 of 2000. 

The Regulator analyzes and reviews the quarterly informa�on submi�ed by the NPA in respect of all 

eight commercial ports. The NPA is engaged on an ongoing basis on the review findings to facilitate 

improved and increased compliance. This is due to the compliance monitoring approach that the 

Regulator has adopted which means co-ordina�ng compliance across the ports system by working 

with the regulated en�ty to increase compliance. 

4.2.2. PRSA Compliance: 

The compliance with all applicable legisla�on, regula�ons, standards and codes is impera�ve to the 

Regulator, and as a result thereof the organisa�on has managed to strengthen its compliance 

structures with the aim of fully complying with the Acts, policies, standards, rules, procedures and 

regula�ons applicable to its opera�on. This process of strengthening compliance has further led to 

the development and approval of a legislatve framework, a compliance scorecard, and several 

policies and procedures that will govern the opera�ng ac�vi�es of the organisa�on to achieve its 

output in line with its Strategic and Annual Performance Plan, and which are reviewed annually.  

Legal   

The Compliance func�on of the organisa�on fulfils the key func�on of ensuring that the Na�onal Ports
 Authority complies with the Na�onal Ports Act, 2005 and its broader legisla�ve framework, including
 direc�ves and regula�ons.

Due to the absence of appointed Regulator members, the quarterly reports were last submi�ed 
in November 2018, which was the last month of the Regulator members term of office. Then the
CEO was delegated as Accoun�ng Authority in terms of S 49 (1) (b) who then approved the
 remainder of the quarterly reports for the financial year. 
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4.2.3. The Ports Regulator Tribunal:  

The Regulator’s tribunal func�on was effec�vely and efficiently run in the year under review. Un�l

30 November 2018, when the term of the Regulator members ended,  a�er which the tribunal func�on 

was suspended due 

 

4.2.4. Amendments to the Na�onal Ports Act, 12 of 2005: 

Both the issues of funding, as well as the tribunal and compliance monitoring processes of the 

Regulator have been very instrumental in assis�ng with the iden�fica�on of necessary legisla�ve 

gaps, which has in turn enabled progress with the suggested amendments to the Act by the 

Regulator. The Secretariat has engaged extensively with the DoT, the Authority and other port 

stakeholders regarding the ra�onale for the amendments proposed. The Department, as the 

custodian of the Act, will be incorpora�ng agreed amendments into a Dra� Amendment Bill for 

further consulta�on and take this forward through the necessary Cabinet and Parliamentary 

processes.  

Significant progress has been made in this regard during the year under review, and the publica�on 

of the Single Transport Economic Regulator Bill for public comment in February 2018 emphasises the 

need for the Ports Regulator to be capacitated urgently, as it is intended to form the core of the 

proposed Single Transport Economic Regulator envisaged in the Bill.     

4.3. Economic Regula�on 

The Economic Regula�on department of the Ports Regulator has numerous achievements to 

highlight in the year under review and has made significant contribu�ons to  the level of 

sophis�ca�on          with which economic regula�on is implemented in the South African ports system. 

The Regulator has published a number of reports, methodologies, and decisions during the 2019/20 

year. A key contribu�on to the sophis�cated and ra�onalisa�on  of tariff se�ngs  in the South African 

ports system has been the implementa�on of the Valua�on of Assets (VoA) Methodology.  

The 2017/18 Tariff Methodology , which included the VoA Methodology,  was implemented in the 

tariff applica�on process for the 2019/20 tariff period. The resultant tariff determina�on, as 

published by the Regulator in its Record of Decision (RoD) on 30 of November 2018, contained a 

below infla�on, average fixed tariff decrease of 6.27% for 2019/20  and indicatve tariffs for two 

subsequent years. The tariff determina�on has resulted in a tariff decrease of 10% for both 

containers and vehicles and a significantly below -infla�on increase of 0% for shipping lines. The 

sharp tariff    decreases can be a�ributed to the implementa�on of the VoA Methodology  which 

reflected an approximate 14% decrease in the value of the regulatory asset base (RAB). The RoD 

further aligns the tariff book with the tariff trajectory as set out in the Tariff Strategy, as published in 

2015, which aims to correct the inherent cross subsidies in the tariff book. 

In an effort to increase transparency, the Regulator, through the RoD, publishes updates in terms of 

Tariff Strategy implementa�on  and base rates ( due to changes in port structure, volumes, etc.). The 

base rates, which indicate cost-reflec�ve rates, provide an indica�on of the tariff trajectory during 

the es�mated ten year implementa�on period, in current terms. In the 2019/20 RoD forty tariff lines 

 

of Regulator Members by the Execu�ve Authority. 

No new ma�ers proceeded to hearing stage. 

 However there was only one review applica�on which was heard and resolved in October 2018. One review 
applica�on da�ng back to 2016 is ongoing.

 A number of new ma�ers have been forthcoming in the year under review and are currently being processed,
 with Tribunal resources to be assigned and delibera�ons to commence therea�er

to the non - appointment
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were removed from the tariff book as part of the streamlining process. The publica�on of cost 

reflec�vee tariffs  in the last four RoD’s takes the levels of transparency and methodological tariff

development to new heights.  

The Port Tariff Incen�ve Programme (PTIP) was developed in collabora�on with the Na�onal Ports 

Authority (the NPA / the Authority), the Department of Trade and Industry (the d�), and the 

Department of Transport (DOT) and was officially launched  in December 2017 at the offices of the 

Department of Transport. The PTIP is intended to serve as a mechanism through which a cross -

subsidy, which is fair and in the public interest, may be implemented across the port tariff system. 

One applica�on was received for considera�on for the 2019/20 tariff period and the Regulator 

published the resultant RoD in December 2018.  

Overall, significant progress is being made in moving closer to a cost-reflec�ve, efficient pricing 

system in South Africa. The publication of the seventh itera�on of the Global Port Pricing 

Comparator Report in 2018/19 as well as the implementa�on of the 2017 Record of Decision on the 

Weighted Efficiency Gains from Opera�on (WEGO) is tes�mony to this progress. The tariff book 

cleanup will con�nue in future years and the further implementa�on of the VoA Methodology will 

ensure that not only are the underlying costs of providing public infrastructure appropriate but will 

also incen�vise more efficient opera�ons and effec�ve expansion and development of the port 

system as a whole.  

In 2019/20, in addi�on to the usual tariff determina�on and research output, the Economic 

Regula�on Department will undertake new projects worth men�oning; Firstly, the mul�-year Tariff 

Methodology will be reviewed and  a new methodology will be published; applicable to the 

2021/20 years going forward. Secondly, an “in -period” update of the 10 year Tariff Strategy will be 

completed and published. Finally, the Regulator, in collabora�on with the NPA, will conduct an in-

depth analysis of the property por�olio and the lease revenue of the Authority in conjunc�on with 

the full implementa�on of the VoA Methodology.  

4.4.  Industry Development 

The Regulator’s industry development program was charged with the responsibility of establishing a 

system to report on the Weighted Efficiency Gains from Opera�ons, receive and assess the 

Authority’s performance on WEGO between 2018/19 and quarter three of 2018/19 as well as 

consulta�ons with both the Na�onal Ports Authority and port users through Port Consulta�ve 

Commi�ees to determine KPIs to be measured in 2019/20. Another key program was to update the 

Broad Based Black Economic Empowerment (B-BBEE) baseline report based on 2015/16 B-BBEE 

certficates and to finalise a strategy to ensure the Authority pursues and drives transforma�on goals 

beyond the B-BBEE level 4 target and to advise the Department of Transport to promulgate the 

B-BBEE scorecard which will create an enabling legal framework to achieve ownership and

management targets for black and women par�cipants in the port system.  

We have con�nued to analyse quarterly capex expenditure of the Authority based on the CAPEX 

register which has proved an important tool in tracking progress and raising issues of concerns 

especially with the Authority’s inability to spend approved CAPEX alloca�on. This func�on has been 

enhanced by our interface with the Port Consulta�ve Commi�ee mee�ngs which the sec�ons 
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a�ends on a quarterly basis, analysis reported progress at port level rela�ve to the corporate plan 

and what the Authority has applied for.  

Lastly, we have con�nued to assess stakeholder feedback and percep�ons about the work of the 

Regulator through self -completed ques�onnaires at our roadshows in Durban, Johannesburg, Port 

Elizabeth and Cape Town. The 2018 sessions were well a�ended with an increase in a�endance and 

feedback submi�ed. The high levels of a�endance by port users a a�est to port users interest in the 

tariff applica�on, in par�cular the NPA’s     non -compliance with the published methodology for the 

valua�on of assets amidst concerns of sustainability. Overall feedback was posi�ve with the 

Regulator con�nuing to score upwards of 4 out of 5 on its independence and efficiency in carrying 

out its func�ons.  

5. Governance Structures: 

 

Members of the Ports Regulator for the financial year 2018/2019 included: 
 
Thaba Mufamadi (Chairperson); Andile Mahlautye; Aubrey Ngcobo; Thato Tsautse; Adv. Gugulethu 
Thimane; Anjue Hirachund; Gerdileen Taylor and Lindelwe Mabandla.  
 
The terms of office for these Members expired on the 31st August 2018 and their terms were extended by 

 

Andile Mahlalutye, Thato Tsautse and Aubrey Ngcobo completed their second term of office on the 
30th November 2018.  The remaining Members had completed their first term of office.  
 
The Chief Execu�ve officer serves as an ex officio Member of the Regulator as contemplated in 
sec�on 34(3) of the Na�onal Ports Act, and was delegated by the Minister to be the Accoun�ng Authority 

 
The roles and responsibili�es of the Regulator are contained in the Regulator Charter which is 
reviewed on an annual basis.  The Regulator sets the culture, ethics and values of the organisa�on 
through its Code of Business and Ethics Policy which applies to both Members and the PRSA 
Secretariat. 
 
The roles of the Chairperson and the Chief Execu�ve Officer are separate and their responsibili�es 
are clearly defined in terms of the Na�onal Ports Act, 2005 and Regulator Charter.  
 
In order to assist in achieving the objec�ves of the organisa�on, an Annual Work Plan is devised to 
assist the Regulator and its commi�ees in structuring mee�ngs and focus areas for the financial year 
in accordance with the objectives of the Annual Performance Plan.   
 
The Regulator must meet as o�en as may be required for the proper performance of its func�ons in 
order to consider the business and strategic objec�ves of the organisa�on, including reviewing 
Reports received from the PRSA Management.  The quorum for Regulator mee�ngs is a majority of 
the Regulator Members present at the mee�ng, and quorums were a�ained for all  Mee�ngs.  
Regulator Members are provided with the necessary informa�on and documents in order to 
perform their du�es effec�vely.   
 
Regulator Members were ac�ve in stakeholder engagements in a�ending Tariff Applica�on 
Roadshows, mee�ngs with the Minister of Transport and announcing the Tariff Record of Decision 
on the 30th November 2018.  

5.1   The Ports Regulator
 

3 months to the 30th of November 2018. No other members were appointed for the remaining months 

 of the financial year.

for administra�ve purposes in the absence of Regulator members.



 
On the 25th September 2018, the Annual General Mee�ng between the Regulator and the 
Shareholding Minister, represented by Deputy Minister Chikunga, took place, which mee�ng provides 
the pla�orm for formal communica�on between the Regulator and the Minister.  
 
Regulator Members represented a diversity of knowledge, skills, experience, age, culture, race and 
gender in its membership.  
 
During the course of the year under review, the Regulator Members reviewed their  performance via 
ques�onnaires for the 2017/2018 period to assess their overall effec�veness and performance. 
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The Regulator met 4 (four) �mes during the year under review.  
 
The table below discloses the number of Regulator mee�ngs held during the year (including 
a�endance at the AGM) and the a�endance of the respec�ve Members: 
 

 REGULATOR MEETINGS 2018/2019 

Name of 
Regulator  
Member* 

 Dates of Mee�ngs 

   

 23rd  May 
2018 

23rd August 
2018 

14th 
September 
2018 
(Special 
Mee�ng) 

23rd 
November 
2018 

% 
A�endance 

Other Business: 
AGM 25th 
September 
2018 

Thaba Mufamadi 
(Chairperson) 

A A A A N/A  A 

Andile 
Mahlalutye 

P P P P 100%  P 

Aubrey Ngcobo P P P P 100%  P 

Thato Tsautse  P P P P 100%  P 

Adv. Gugulethu 
Thimane  

P P P P 100%  P 

Gerdileen Taylor  P P A A 50%  P 

Lindelwe 
Mabandla 

P P A P 75%  A 

Anjue Hirachund P P P P 100%  P 

Mahesh Fakir (ex 
officio Member) 

P P N/A P 100%  P 

Legend: P- Present. A-Absent  

* The terms of office of all Regulator Members expired on the 30th November 2018   

  
Schedule of Members a�endance at Regulator Mee�ngs  

The commitment to the business of the Regulator was demonstrated by the high mee�ng 
a�endance by Regulator Members, at both Regulator and Sub-Commi�ee mee�ngs.



5.2. Commi�ees of the Regulator 

The Regulator delegates certain responsibili�es to Regulator sub -Commitees, while s�ll 
remaining ul�mately accountable. The Regulator appoints the Chairperson and Members to 
these Commi�ee     who are cons�tuted in order to assist the Regulator in achieving the 
organisa�ons objec�ves.  
The Audit and Risk Commi�ee, Human Resource & Remunera�on Commi�ee and the 
Regulatory Commi�ee are the three sub-commi�ees of the Regulator. Each Commi�ee has at 
least 3 (three) Regulator Members.  
Each Regulator sub-Commi�ee is governed by formal Terms of Reference/Charter which are 
reviewed on an annual basis.  The Terms of Reference deal with ma�ers of composi�on roles 
and responsibili�es, and  mee�ng      procedures.  
Members of PRSA Management are      standing invitees to all Commi�ee Mee�ngs.   
Each Commi�ee is required to submit Reports to and where applicable make recommenda�ons 
to the Regulator.   
Each Commi�ee  has the necessary skills, exper�se, knowledge, capacity and experience to 
perform their func�ons and du�es efficiently and effec�vely.
 

5.3. The Human Resources  and Remunera�on Commi�ee 

The role of the Human Resource and Remunera�on Commi�ee is to assist the Regulator with:  

· Governance and control of human resource and remunera�on strategies, processes, 

procedures and HR ac�vi�es within the organisa�on 

· Ensuring fair and transparent condi�ons of services and employee benefits 

· Ensuring effec�ve human resource related policies and procedures in place 

· Overseeing the execu�on of the Human Resource Strategy 

· Conduc�ng Annual Review of policies, procedures and remunera�on structures  

Highlights of the ac�vi�es of the Commi�ee for the year under review included: 

·

 

Conduc�ng of a HR Workshop during June 2018 to consider, a proposed new and expanded  
PRSA Organisa�onal Structure  

· ICAS Employee Wellness Survey /Employee Sa�sfac�on Survey workshopped with 

employees  

· Implementa�on   of electronic leave system  

· Disciplinary and Grievance Workshop with employees  

· Salary Benchmarking Exercise  
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The Human Resource and Remunera�on Commi�ee consisted of the following Regulator Members:  
Anjue Hirachund (Chairperson); Adv. Gugulethu Thimane and Lindelwe Mabandla. 
The Commi�ee met 4 (four) �mes during the year under review.  
The table below discloses the number of Human Resource and Remunera�on Commi�ee mee�ngs 
held during the year and the a�endance of the respec�ve Members:  

 
HUMAN RESOURCE AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE 2018/2019 

Dates of Mee�ngs  

 

18th May 
2018 

13TH June 
2018 

(Special 
Mee�ng) 

25th July 
2018 

14th 
November 

2018 

 % 
A�endance 

P  P  P  P   100% 

P  P  P  P   100% 

P  P  P  A   75% 

 
Legend: P- Present. A -Apologies  
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Anjue 
Hirachund  
(Chairperson)  

Adv. 
Gugulethu 
Thimane  

Lindelwe 
Mabandla   

Name of 
Members 

  

 



 

 

5.4. The Regulatory Commi�ee 

The role of the Regulatory Commi�ee   is to assist the Regulator with: 

· Monitoring the Na�onal Ports Authori�es compliance with the Na�onal Ports Act 

· Maintaining oversight of the Regulatory and Tribunal func�ons of the Regulator 

· Providing oversight of economic regula�on as it relates to the Tariff Applica�on      process  

· Oversight of access to and ensuring transforma�on in the ports sector 

· Regula�ng   the provision of adequate, affordable and efficient ports services and facili�es  

Highlights of the ac�vi�es   of the Regulatory Commi�ee for the year under review included- 

· Announcement of Tariff Decision on the 30 th November 2018 which resulted in an overall 

increase in average tariffs at -6.27% informed by the importance of the ongoing 

sustainability of Transnet. 

· Considered and made recommenda�ons to the Regula�on or on first Port Tariff Incen�ve

Programme (PTIP) Applica�on received  

· Considered and made recommenda�on to the Regulator in terms of the SA Flag Vessel 

Incen�ve 

· Amendments to the Na�onal Ports Act had been published in the Government Gaze�e on 

the 22nd June 2018 for purposes of public comment  

The Commi�ee was proac�ve in engaging the Na�onal Ports Authority on the submi�ed Tariff 
Applica�on, which led to the first mee�ng between Regulator Members and the Transnet Board of 
Directors on the 13th November 2018 to discuss the submi�ed Tariff Applica�on.  
In addi�on, the Commi�ee noted the significance of this engagement and in the interests of 
transparency and fairness, ensured that the public was advised of this mee�ng by publishing a no�ce 
on the PRSA website.  
The Regulatory Commi�ee consisted of the following Regulator Members:  Thato Tsautse, Adv. 
Gugulethu Thimane and Gerdileen Taylor.  
The Commi�ee met 5 (five)�mes during the year under review.  
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The table below discloses the number of Regulatory Commi�ee mee�ng held during the year and 
the a�endance of the respec�ve Members: 
 

REGULATORY COMMITTEE 2018/2019 

Name of 
Members 

Dates of Mee�ngs  

   

 16th  May 
2018  

13TH 
August 
2018 

12th 
November 
2018  

13th 
November 
2018  
(Special 
Mee�ng) 

22nd 
November 
2018 
(Special 
Mee�ng) 

% 
A�endance  

Thato Tsautse 
(Chairperson)  

P  P P P P 100% 

Adv. 
Gugulethu 
Thimane  

P  P P  P P  100% 

Gerdileen 
Taylor  

P  P P P A 80% 

 
Legend: P-Present. A-Apologies. 
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5.5.

 

The Audit Commi�ee
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Legend: P - Present. A -Apologies  



adopted Charter.  The Audit and Risk Committee Charter and the Internal Audit Charter are reviewed 

and adopted on an annual basis.  

The effec�veness of Internal Control   

Based on the informa�on and explana�ons given by Management and its discussions with the 

Auditor-General of South Africa (“AGSA”) on the results of its audits, the internal accoun�ng controls 

are opera�ng effec�vely.  Thus,  ensuring that the financial records may be relied upon for preparing 

the Annual Financial Statements (“AFS”) , and that accountability for assets and liabili�es is 

maintained. 

However, it must be reported that there were incidents where the control system was found to be 

lacking. More informa�on rela�ng to this can be found in the report, AGSA’s report, and the AFS. 

The Internal Auditors have conducted audits on certain key opera�ons and processes of the 

Regulator/Accoun�ng Authority as per the approved Internal Audit Plan during the year under 

review.  

Based on the scope and results of their work, and subject to the limita�ons of sampling, and their 

evalua�on of the key controls implemented by Management to address the associated risks, it 

appears that there were some instances of control breakdowns. Certain improvements were needed 

regarding key control ac�vi�es in providing reasonable assurance that the risk areas, subject to the 

review, were being properly managed and controlled. Some instances of non-compliance to 

legisla�on and policies and procedures were also reported. 

These have, however, been addressed/are in the process of being addressed through the exis�ng 

levels of Management. AGSA, and Internal Audit have expressed confidence that Management is 

commi�ed to and is taking the necessary remedial ac�on to address the control deficiencies. 

Accordingly, the system of internal control for the period under review was efficient and effec�ve, 

except for those areas that were raised by the AGSA. 

During the year under review, the Audit and Risk Commi�ee, with the approval  of the 

Regulator/Accoun�ng Authority, adopted a Risk Management Policy to address the management of 

risk within the organisa�on.  

In-year Management and Monthly/Quarterly Report 

Management ensured that quality reports were submi�ed to the Audit and Risk Commi�ee and the 

Regulator/Accoun�ng Authority for review thereof. All reports required in terms of the PFMA to be 

submi�ed to the Execu�ve Authority and to the Na�onal Treasury were submi�ed �meously.  

Evalua�on of the Financial Statements  

The delegated Accoun�ng Authority reviewed: 

· the audited AFS to be included in the Annual Report with the AGSA and the Chief Financial 

Officer 

· the AGSA’s Management Report and Managements response thereto 

· the en��es compliance with legal and regulatory provisions 

· reviewed accoun�ng policies and prac�ces as reported in the AFS 

· reviewed significant adjustments  resul�ng from the audit 
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Report of the AGSA 

The delegated Accoun�ng Authority concurs and accepts the conclusions of the AGSA on the AFS 

and is of the opinion that the audited AFS be accepted and read together with the report of the 

AGSA.  

 

Conclusion  

The delegated Accoun�ng Authority confirms that both general and specific controls have been 

iden�fied (with weak areas) for Management’s a�en�on. These areas are being addressed and this 

correc�ve process must be ongoing and conclusive to mi�gate the risk of not achieving the 

Regulators agreed strategic objec�ves. The Regulator’s key performance indicators are being 

monitored within the environmental and cash flow constraints the Regulator faces. The Regulator is 

achieving in most key performance areas.  

Mahesh Fakir 
Delegated Accoun�ng Authority  
Ports Regulator of South Africa   

Aubrey Ngcobo
Member of the Audit and Risk Commi�ee from the 1st March 2018 to 30 November 2018 

 

Ports Regulator of South Africa  
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Date: 03 / 09 / 2019  

Date: 03 / 09 / 2019  

 

 



Table 8 : Regulator Member fees for period 01 April 2018 to 31 March 2019 

Name 
Member Fees 

(R’000) (2018/19) 

Performance 

Bonus 
Leave Pay Total  (R’000) 

Mr. T . Mufamadi  11 - - 11 

Ms. T. Tsautse  102 - - 102 

Mr. A. Ngcobo 131 - - 131 

Mr.  A. Mahlalutye 105 - - 105 

Mr. L. Mabandla 93 - - 93 

Adv. G. Thimane 131 - - 131 

Ms. G. Taylor 101 - - 101 

Mrs. A. Hirachund 123 - - 123 
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Minister Fikile Mbalula’s visit to the Ports Regulator offices on 15th August 2019
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7. Statement of es�mated income and expenditure 

Statement of Es�mated Income and Expenditure 2019/20 

Revenue 
 

Tax revenue – 

Non-tax revenue – 

Sale of goods and services other than capital assets - 

of which: 
 

Admin fees – 

Sales by market establishments – 

Other sales – 

Other non-tax revenue 610 

Transfers received 36,774 

Total revenue 37,384 

Expenses 
 

Current expense 37,384 

Compensa�on of employees  20, 931 

Goods and services  16, 351 

Deprecia�on  102 

Interest, dividends and rent on land – 

Interest – 

Dividends – 

Rent on land – 

Transfers and subsidies – 

Total expenses 37,384 

Surplus / (Deficit) – 
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ACCOUNTING AUTHORITY’S RESPONSIBILITIES 
for the year ended 31 March 2019 

The Regulator Members are responsible for the maintenance of adequate accoun�ng records 

and the prepara�on and integrity of the financial statements and related informa�on. The 

auditors are responsible for repor�ng on the fair presenta�on of the financial statements. The 

financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Generally Recognised Accoun�ng 

Prac�ce (GRAP) issued by the Accoun�ng Standards Board in accordance with Sec�on 91 of the 

Public Finance Management Act, 1999 (Act No.1 of 1999)(PFMA). 

The Regulator Members are also responsible for the system of internal financial control.  These 

are designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance as to the reliability of the 

financial statements, and to adequately safeguard, verify and maintain accountability of the 

assets, and prevent and detect misstatements and loss.  Nothing has come to the a�en�on of the 

members to indicate any material breakdown in the func�oning of these controls, procedures 

and systems during the year under review.  

 Approval 

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019 set out on pages 74 to 94  were 

approved by the Accoun�ng Authority on 23 May 2019. 

___________________________ 

Mahesh Fakir 

Chief Execu�ve Officer

_________________________ 

Mahesh Fakir 

Delegated Accoun�ng Authority 
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 Report of the auditor - general to Parliament on the Ports Regulator South 
 Africa

I have audited the financial statements of the Ports Regulator of South Africa set out on

Opinion

1.
pages 74 to 94 which comprise the statement of financial posi�on as at 31 March 2019,
the statement of financial performance, statement of changes in net assets, cash flow 
 statement and statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts for the year then ended, 
as well as the notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant 
accoun�ng policies.

In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respect, the2.
financial posi�on of the Ports Regulator of South Africa as at 31 March 2019, and its
financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with 
South African Standards of Generally Recognised Accoun�ng Prac�ce (SA Standards of
GRAP) and the requirements of the Public Finance Management Act of South Africa,
1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999) (PFMA).

Basis of opinion

I conducted my audit in accordance with the Interna�onal Standards on Audi�ng (ISAs).3.

My responsibili�es under those standards are further described in the auditor-general’s
 responsibili�es for the audit of the financial statements sec�on of this auditor’s report. 

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for my opinion.

4.

5.

6. The board of directors, which cons�tutes the accoun�ng authority is responsible for the  

prepara�on and fair presenta�on of the financial statements in accordance with the SA 
standard of GRAP and the requirements of the PFMA, and for such internal control as the  
accoun�ng authority determines is necessary to enable the prepara�on of financial statements 
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, the accoun�ng authority is responsible for 7.
assessing the Ports Regulator of South Africa’s ability to con�nue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, ma�ers rela�ng to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accoun�ng unless the appropriate governance structure either intends to liquidate the 
en�ty or to cease opera�ons, or has no realis�c alterna�ve but to do so.

 

 

Responsibilities of accounting authority for the nancial statements

I am independent of the en�ty in accordance with sec�on 290 and 291 of the Interna�onal
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants ‘Code of ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA 
code) and the ethical requirements that are relevant to my audit in South Africa. I have fulfilled
 my other ethical responsibili�es in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA code. 

 Report on the audit of the nancial statements

Page 69 Ports Regulator Annual Report



Page 70 Ports Regulator Annual Report

 

 Report on the audit of the annual performance report  

8.  My objec�ves are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
      statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error
      and to issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a 
      high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
      with the ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
      arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, 
      they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken 
      on the basis of these financial statements.

9.   A further descrip�on of my responsibili�es for the audit of the financial statements is 
      included in the annexure to this auditor’s report.

Introduction and scope

10. In accordance with the Public Audit Act of South Africa, 2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004) (PAA)
       and the general no�ce issued in terms thereof, I have a responsibility to report material 
        findings on the reported performance informa�on against predetermined objec�ves for 

                selected programmes           presented in the annual performance report. I performed procedures  
        to iden�fy findings but not to gather evidence to express assurance. 
 
11. My procedures address the reported performance informa�on, which mut be based on 
       the approved performance planning documents of the en�ty. I have not evaluated the 
       completeness and appropriateness of the performance indicators/measures included in the 
       planning documents. My procedures also did not extend to any disclosures or asser�ons 
       rela�ng to planned performance strategies and informa�on in respect of future periods
       that may be included as part of the reported performance informa�on. Accordingly, my 
       findings do not extend to these ma�ers.   
 
12. I evaluated the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance informa�on in 
      accordance with the criteria developed from the performance management and 
      repor�ng framework, as defined in the general no�ce, for the following selected 
      objec�ves presented in the annual performance report of the en�ty or the year ended 
      31 March 2019:    

 

Objec�ves Pages in the annual 
performance report

45 - 48      
 

Objec�ve 2 - Ongoing implementa�on of economic regula�on 
of ports(Price, access, ins�tu�onal structure).    
 
Objec�ve 4 - Monitoring the port industry and its compliance with 
with the Na�onal Ports Act and other Regulatory instruments to 
ensure access to and compe��on within the port system

Objec�ve 5 - Opera�ng an  effec�ve and efficient tribunal to hear 
complaints and appeals under the Na�onal Ports Act

50 - 51 
 

51 
 

 

 

Auditor-general’s responsibilities for the for the audit of the nancial 
statements 



      properly presented and whether performance was consistent with the approved 
      performance planning documents. I performed further procedures to determine whether the 
      indicators and related targets were measurable and relevant, and assessed the reliability of the 
      reported performance informa�on to determine whether it was valid, accurate and complete.    

 
14. I did not raise any material findings on the usefulness and reliability of the reported 
       performance informa�on for these programmes. 

15. In accordance with the PAA and general no�ce issued in terms thereof, I have a responsibility to 
       report material findings on the compliance of the public en�ty with specific ma�ers in key 
       legisla�on. I performed procedures to iden�fy findings but not to gather evidence to express 
       assurance. 
  
16. The material findings on compliance with specific ma�ers in key legisla�ons are as follows.   

  

17. Some of the goods and services with a transac�on value below R500 000 were procured 
       without obtaining the required price quota�ons, as required by treasury regula�on 16A6.1.    
  

18. Goods and services of a transac�on value above R500 000 were procured without invi�ng
       compe��vee bids and devia�ons were approved by the accoun�ng officer but it was prac�cal to 
       invite compe��ve bids, as required by treasury regula�ons 16A6.1 and 16A6.4. 

19. Quota�ons were accepted from prospec�ve suppliers who did not submit a declara�on on 
       whether they are employed by the state or connected to any person employed by the state,
      which is prescribed in order to comply with treasury regula�on 16A8.3. 

  
  

Procurement and contract management

Report on the audit of compliance with legislation 

 

 
 

 

20. The accoun�ng authority is responsible for the other informa�on. The other informa�on
       comprises the informa�on included in the annual report. The other informa�on does not include
       the financial statements, the auditor’s report and those selected programmes presented in the 
       annual performance report that have been specifically reported in this auditor’s report.   

Other Information

21. My opinion on the financial statements and findings on the reported performance informa�on 
       and compliance with legisla�on do not cover the other informa�on and I do not express an 
       audit opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

22. In connec�on with my audit, my responsibility is to read the other informa�on and, in doing  so, 
      consider whether the other informa�on is materially inconsistent with the financial statements
      and the selected programmes presented in the annual performance report, or my knowledge 

       obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.  

Introduction and Scope
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13. I performed procedures to determine whether the reported performance informa�on was 



 

 

23. If based on the work performed, I conclude that there is a material misstatement in this other 
       informa�on, I am required to report that fact. 

24. I have nothing to report in this regard.   

Pietermaritzburg 
  
  31 July 2019
  
  

Internal control deciencies

Auditing to build public condence
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25. I considered internal control relevant to my audit of the financial statements, reported 
      performance informa�on and compliance with applicable legisla�on; however, my objec�ve 
      was not to express any form of assurance on it. The ma�ers reported below are limited to the 
      significant internal control deficiencies that resulted in the findings on compliance with 
      legisla�on included in this report.        

26. Leadership did not exercise adequate oversight on non-compliance with laws and regula�ons
      rela�ng to procurement and contract management. 

27. Non-compliance with key legisla�on would have been prevented, had management 
       implemented and monitored adherence to SCM compliance checklists.    
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      Annexure - Auditor-general’s responsibility for the audit 

1.  As part of an audit in accordance with the ISAs, I exercise professional judgement and maintain 
     professional scep�cism throughout my audit of the financial statements, and the procedures 
     performed on reported performance informa�on for selected programmes and on the en�ty’s 
     compliance with respect to the selected subject ma�ers. 

     Financial Statements 

2.  In addi�on to my responsibility for the audit of the financial statements as described in this auditor’s
      report, I also:

      iden�fy and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statement whether due to 
      fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 
      evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. The risk of not detec�ng 
      a material misstatement resul�ng from fraud is higher than for one resul�ng from error, as fraud may 
      involve collusion, forgery, inten�onal omissions, misrepresenta�ons, or the override of internal control 

      obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 
      are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effec�veness
      of the en�ty’s internal control.

       evaluate the appropriateness of accoun�ng policies used and the reasonableness of accoun�ng es�mates 
       and related disclosures made by the board of directors, which cons�tutes the accoun�ng authority.

       conclude on the appropriateness of the board of directors, which cons�tutes the accoun�ng authority’s 
       use of the going concern basis of accoun�ng in the prepara�on of the financial statements.  I also conclude,
        based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or condi�ons
       that may cast significant doubt on the Ports Regulator of South Africa’s ability to con�nue as a going concern. 
       If I conclude that a material uncertainty exists, I am required to draw a�en�on in my auditor’s report to  
       the related disclosures in the financial statements about the material uncertainty or, if such disclosures are  
       inadequate, to modify the opinion on the financial statements. My conclusion are based on the informa�on 
       available to me at the date of this auditor’s report. However, future events or condi�ons may cause an en�ty   
       to cease con�nuing as a going concern. 

       evaluate the overall presenta�on, structure and content of the financial statements, including the 
       disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transac�ons and events in a 
       manner that achieves fair presenta�on

     Communica�on with those charged with governance 

3.   I communicate with the accoun�ng authority regarding, among other ma�ers, the planned scope and �ming
      of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that I 
      iden�fy during my audit. 

4.   I also confirm to the accoun�ng authority that I have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding 
      independence, and communicate all rela�onships and other ma�ers that may reasonably be thought to 
      have a bearing on my independence and, where applicable, related safeguards. 
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION  

For the year ended at 31 March 2019 

 Notes 2019  2018  

  R’000  R'000  

ASSETS      

      

Non-current assets   2 163   1 809  

  Property, plant and equipment 8 1 797  1 429  

  Intangible asset 9 22  39  

  Loans and receivables 10 344  341  

        

Current assets  17 640  15 396  

  Trade and other receivables 11 79  109  

  Cash and cash equivalents  12 17 561  15 287  

        

      

TOTAL ASSETS  19 803  17 205  

      

LIABILITIES      

      

Current liabili�es  1 404  1 162  

  Trade and other payables 13  817   677  

  Provisions   15 587  485  

        

TOTAL LIABILITIES  1 404  1 162  

      

NET ASSETS 

 

     

CAPITAL AND RESERVES      

  Accumulated surplus  18 399  16 043  

      

TOTAL NET ASSETS  18 399  16 043  

      

      

TOTAL NET ASSETS AND LIABILITIES   19 803  17 205  
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE 
at 31 March 2019  

Notes 2019  2018  

 R’000  R'000  

REVENUE 

 

     

Revenue from non-exchange transac�ons 2 25 619  22 489  

   Government grants and subsidies  25 619  22 489  

      

Revenue from exchange transac�ons 3 98  101  

Sale of goods and rendering of services  6  6  

Other income  92  95  

      

TOTAL REVENUE  25 717  22 590  

      

EXPENDITURE      

Administra�on expenses 

Amor�sa�on and deprecia�on  

5 

8 & 9 

 1 670 

520 

  953 

437 

 

Staff costs 6 13 820  13 716  

Audit fees 

Legal fees  

Opera�ng Lease                                                                                            

26 

27 

14 

348 

800 

1 672 

 319 

499 

1 664 

 

Other opera�ng expenses 

Regulator members’ remunera�on 

7 

17 

4 637 

797 

 5 106 

1 371 

 

      

TOTAL EXPENDITURE  24 264  24 065  

 

Finance income                                                                                      

 

OTHER GAINS/ (LOSSES ) 

 

Gain / (loss) on disposal of assets 

 

4 

 

      1 021 

 

 

             

(118) 

  

960 

 

 

 

14 

 

     

SURPLUS/ (DEFICIT) FOR THE PERIOD 2 356     (501)  
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS  
For the year ended 31 March 2019 

   

   

 Accumulated 

Surplus  

R'000 

 

   

Opening balance at 1 April 2017  16 314  

    

Surplus/(Deficit) for the year 

 

Prior year adjustment 

 

 

28 

(501) 

 

230 

 

    

Opening balance at 1 April 2018  16 043  

    

Surplus/(Deficit) for the year  2 356  

    

Closing balance as at 31 March 2019  18 399  
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CASH FLOW STATEMEMT  
For the year ended 31 March 2019 

Note 2019  2018  

 R’000  R'000  

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES      

Receipts  25 717  22 590  

Transfers received  2 25 619    22 489    

Sale of goods and services 3 6  6  

Other income  92  95  

      

Payments  (23 475)  (23 495)  

   Employee cost 6 (13 820)  (13 716)  

   Suppliers and other payments  (9 655)  (9 779)  

      

      

Net cash flows from opera�ons  2 242  (905)  

Interest paid                 -                 -  

Finance income                1 021                   960  

      

Net cash flow available from opera�ng ac�vi�es 16 3 263  55  

      

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES      

Property, plant and equipment 8 (1 125)  (135)  

Intangible assets  9 -  -  

Proceeds from De-recogniton of  Property, plant and 

equipment 

 136  54  

Net cash flows from inves�ng ac�vi�es  (989)  (81)  

      

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  2 274  (26)  

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year  15 287  15 313  

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year  17 561  15 287  
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STATEMENT OF COMPARISON TO BUDGET  
For the year ended 31 March 2019 

Economic Classifica�on Approved 

Budget 

Adjustments Final 

Approved 

Budget 

Actual Variance 

 

 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 

Revenue      

Transfers  25 619 0 25 619 25 619 0 

Interest Received 351 169 520 1 021 501 

Sale of good and services 0 0 0 6 6 

Other income 0 0 0 92 92 

Reserves 0 5 000 5 000 0 (5 000) 

Gain on disposal 0 0 0 0 0 

 25 970 5 169 31 139 26 738 (4 401) 

      

Expenses      

Deprecia�on & Amor�sa�on 155 0 155 520 (365) 

Compensa�on of employees 16 658 0 16 658 13 820 2 838 

Goods & Services 9 157 5 169 14 326 9 924 4 402 

Loss on disposal of assets 0 0 0 118 (118) 

 25 970 5 169 31 139 24 382 6 757 

      

Surplus/(Deficit) 0 0 0 2 356 2 356 

      

Capital Budget 0 2 000 2 000 1 125 875 

 0 2 000 2 000 1 125 875 

      

 

 

*Please refer to Note 21 of the Annual Financial Statements for detailed variance analysis between budget and actual 

amounts. 
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 Accoun�ng Policies 1

1.1 Basis of prepara�on 

The annual financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis of accoun�ng and are in 

accordance with historical cost conven�on unless specified otherwise. 

These annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Generally Recognised 

Accoun�ng  Prac�ce (GRAP), issued by the Accoun�ng Standards Board in accordance with 

Sec�on 91 of the Public Finance Management Act, 1999 (Act No.1 of 1999) (PFMA).  

The principal accoun�ng policies, applied in the prepara�on of these annual financial statements, 

are set out below. These accoun�ng policies are consistent with those applied in the prepara�on 

of the prior year annual financial statements, unless specified otherwise. Details of any changes 

in the accoun�ng policies are provided in notes. 

When the presenta�on or classifica�on of items in the annual financial statements is amended, 

prior period compara�ve amounts are also reclassified and restated   , unless such compara�ve 

reclassifica�on and / or restatement is not required by a Standard of GRAP. The nature and 

reason for such reclassifica�ons and restatements are also disclosed. 

Assets, liabili�es, revenues and expenses have not been offset except when offse�ng is required 

or permi�ed by  Standard of GRAP.  

The accoun�ng   policies applied are consistent with those used to present the previous year's 

financial statements, unless explicitly stated.  The details of any changes in accoun�ng policies 

are explained in the relevant policy. 

The cash flow statement has been prepared in accordance with the direct method. 

1.2 Presenta�on currency 

All amounts have been presented in the currency of the South African Rand (R) which is also the 

func�onal currency of the Ports Regulator.  

1.3 Rounding 

Unless otherwise stated all financial figures have been rounded up to the nearest one thousand 

Rand (R’000). 

1.4 Standards, Amendments to standards and interpreta�ons issued but not yet Effec�ve 

   The following Standards of GRAP and / or amendments thereto have been issued by the 

Accoun�ng Standards Board, but will only become effec�ve in future periods or have not been 

given an effec�ve date by the Minister of Finance : GRAP 34 Separate Financial Statements, GRAP 

35 Consolidated Financial Statements, GRAP 36 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures, 

GRAP 37 Joint Arrangements, GRAP 38 Disclosure of Interests in Other En��es and GRAP 110 

Living and Non-Living Resources. The en�ty has not early-adopted any of these new Standards or 

amendments thereto, but has referred to them for guidance in the development of accoun�ng 

policies in accordance with GRAP 3 as read with Direc�ve 5: GRAP 18 (Segment repor�ng) 
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1.5 Property, plant and equipment 

Property, plant and equipment are tangible non-current assets that are held for use in the 

produc�on or supply of goods or services, rental to others, or for administra�ve purposes and are 

expected to be used during more than one year.  

Items of property, plant and equipment are ini�ally recognised as assets on acquisi�on date and 

are ini�ally recorded at cost where acquired through exchange transac�ons. However, when 

items of property, plant and equipment are acquired through non-exchange transactons, those 

items are ini�ally measured at their fair values as at the date of acquisi�on. 

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is the purchase price and other costs 

directly a�ributable to bring the asset to the loca�on and condi�on necessary for it to be capable 

of opera�ng in the manner intended by the en�ty. Trade discounts and rebates are deducted in 

arriving at the cost at which the asset is recognised. The cost also includes the es�mated costs of 

dismantling and removing the asset and restoring the site on which it is operated. 

Deprecia�on is calculated on the depreciable amount, using the straight-line method over the 

es�mated useful lives of the assets.  Components of assets that are significant in rela�on to the 

whole asset and that have different useful lives are depreciated separately. The depreciable 

amount is determined a�er taking into account an asset’s residual value, where applicable for the 

en�ty 

Office furniture and fi�ngs - 12 years 

Computer equipment             - 5 years 

Motor vehicles                       - 7 years 

The useful lives of property, plant and equipment and their residual values are reassessed at the 

end of each financial year. Where the carrying amount of an asset is greater than its es�mated

recoverable amount, it is wri�en down immediately to its recoverable amount (i.e. impairment 

losses are recognised).  The subsequent measurement of PPE is carried out either using the cost 

model. 

Property, plant and equipment is derecognised on disposal or when the future economic benefits 

or no service poten�al are expected from its use or disposal. When PPE is derecognised, the gain 

or loss upon derecogni�on is included in surplus or deficit for the period. 

1.6 Books 

Books consist of library material that is used by the en�ty for the research, legal and economic 

regula�on ac�vi�es. Books are recognised at cost upon acquisi�on. There are subsequent 

measurements that occur every year for each book un�l the book has  reached its useful life. 

Subsequent measurements are done using the cost model. Review are carried out at the end of 

each financial year. Upon derecogni�on, the gain/loss is included in the surplus or deficit for the 

period. 

Books                                                                       -8 years 
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1.7 Intangible assets 

An intangible asset is an iden�fiable non - monetary asset without physical substance. The en�ty 

recognises an intangible asset in its Statement of Financial  Posi�on only when it is probable that 

the expected future economic benefits or service poten�al that are a�ributable to the asset will 

flow to the en�ty and the cost or fair value of the asset can be measured reliably. 

Intangible assets are ini�ally recognised at cost. 

Where an intangible asset is acquired by the en�ty for no or nominal considera�on (i.e. a non -

exchange transac�on), the cost is deemed to be equal to the fair value of that asset on the date 

acquired. 

The cost of an intangible asset is amor�sed over the useful life where that useful life is finite. The 

amor�sa�on expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the Statement of 

Financial Performance in the expense category consistent with the func�on of the intangible

asset. 

Amortsa�on is charged to write off the cost of intangible assets over their es�mated useful lives 

using the straight-line method.   

Computer So�ware                 - 5 years  

1.8 Provisions 

Provisions are recognised when: 

· An en�ty has a present obliga�on as a result of a past event; 

· It is probable that an ou�low of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to 

se�le the obliga�on; and 

· A reasonable es�mate can be made of the obliga�on 

1.9    Leases 

The Ports Regulator is a lessee for the office accommoda�on. 

Assets subject to opera�ng  leases, i.e. those leases where substan�ally all of the risks and 

rewards of ownership are not transferred to the lessee through the lease, are not recognised in 

the Statement of Financial Posi�on. The opera�ng lease expense is recognised over the course of 

the lease arrangement.  

Opera�ng lease payments are recognised in the statement of financial performance on a straight 

– line basis over the term of the lease. 

1.10
 

Financial instruments
 

Financial instruments are ini�ally recognised at cost.

1.10.1 Trade and other receivables
Trade and other receivables are categorised as financial assets: loans and receivables and are 
ini�ally recognised at fair value and subsequently carried at amor�sed cost. Amor�sed cost refers 
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to the ini�al carrying amount, plus interest, less repayments and impairments. Amounts that are 

receivable within 12 months from the repor�ng date are classified as current. 

1.10.2 Trade and other payables 

Financial liabili�es consist of trade payables and borrowings. They are categorised as financial 

liabili�es held at amor�sed cost, are ini�ally recognised at fair value and subsequently measured 

at amor�sed cost which is the ini�al carrying amount, less repayments, plus interest. 

1.11  Budget informa�on 

The budget of the en�ty is prepared on a cash basis while the annual financial statements are 

prepared on an accrual basis.  The budget covers the period from 01 April at the beginning of 

each period unitl 31 March being the end of the period. 

The budget is prepared based on the appropria�ons from Parliament and a reconcilia�on is 

included in the statement of comparison to budget.  

1.12  Going concern 

The financial statements  of the en�ty are presented on a going concern basis. This is as a result 

that the assets of the en�ty exceeds its liabili�es as at 31 March 2019. Based on this, there is no 

uncertainty regarding the con�nued existence of the en�ty for the foreseeable future. It must be 

noted that the en�ty relies on transfers from the appropria�on to fund its opera�ons, therefore 

there is no doubt regarding the funding of the future opera�ons of the en�ty and the ability to 

realise its assets and se�le its liabili�es. 

The Execu�ve Authority is in the process to establish Single Transport Economic Regulator, it must 

be noted that, in terms of the gaze�ed STER Bill (February 2018), the Ports Regulator will be the 

core of the STER when it is formed. This eliminates any uncertainty regarding the con�nued 

existence of the Ports Regulator.  

1.13  Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash includes cash with banks. Cash equivalents are short -term highly liquid investments, readily 

conver�ble into known amounts of cash, which are held with registered banking ins�tu�ons  and 

are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 

1.14  Fruitless and wasteful expenditure 

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is expenditure that was made in vain and would have been 

avoided had reasonable care been exercised. Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is accounted for 

as expenditure in the Statement of Financial Performance and where recovered, it is 

subsequently accounted for as revenue in the Statement of Financial Performance. 
 

1.15 Revenue recogni�on 

Revenue from non-exchange transac�on arises when the en�ty either receives value from 

another en�ty without directly giving approximately equal value in exchange or gives value to 

another en�ty without directly receiving approximately equal value in exchange.    
An asset that is recognised as a result of a non-exchange transac�on is recognised at its fair value 

at the date of the transfer.  Consequently, revenue arising from a non-exchange transac�on is 
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measured at the fair value of the asset received, less the amount of any liabili�es that are also 

recognised due to condi�ons that must s�ll be sa�sfied. 

Revenue from exchange transac�on refers to revenue that accrues to the en�ty directly in 

return for services rendered or goods sold, the value of which approximates the considera�on 

received or receivable, excluding indirect taxes, rebates and discounts. 

Revenue from exchange transac�on is only recognised once all of the following criteria have 

been sa�sfied: 

a) The en�ty retains neither con�nuing managerial involvement to the degree usually 

associated with ownership nor effec�ve control over the goods sold; 

b) The amount of revenue can be measured reliably; and 

c) It is probable that the economic benefits or service poten�al associated with the 

transac�on will flow to the en�ty and the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of 

the transac�on can be measured reliably. 

1.16 Related Par�es 

The en�ty has processes and controls in place to aid in the iden�fica�on of related par�es. A 

related party is a person or an en�ty with the ability to control or jointly control the other party, 

or exercise significant influence over the other party, or vice versa, or an en�ty that is subject to 

common control, or joint control. Related party rela�onships where control exists are disclosed 

regardless of whether any transac�ons took place between the par�es during the repor�ng 

period. 

1.17 Unauthorised and Irregular expenditure 

Irregular expenditure is expenditure that is contrary to the Public Finance Management Act 

(PFMA) and the Public Office Bearers Act (Act No. 20 of 1998) or is in contraven�on of the en�ty’s 

supply chain management policies.  Irregular expenditure excludes unauthorised expenditure.   

Irregular expenditure is accounted for as expenditure in the Statement of Financial Performance 

and where recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the Statement of Financial 

Performance.  

Unauthorised expenditure is expenditure that has not been budgeted for, expenditure that is not 

in terms of the condi�ons of an alloca�on received from another sphere of government or organ 

of state and expenditure in the form of a grant that is not permi�ed. Unauthorised expenditure 

is accounted for as an expense in the Statement of Financial Performance and where recovered, 

it is subsequently accounted for as income in the Statement of Financial Performance. 
 

1.18 Employee Costs 

The employee costs represent the actual expenditure for basic salaries, employer contribu�ons,

allowances and performance bonuses. The pension benefits are administered by the Government 

Pensions Administra�ons Agency; the Ports Regulator contributes to the agency with the balance 

coming from employees as per the rules governing pension. Medical aid benefits are 

administered by Discovery Medical Aid and the Ports Regulator contributes towards the medical 
aid service provider. The group life benefits are administered by Liberty Life, all benefits as per 

the condi�ons of service are available to employees. 
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 2019 

               

              2018 

              R’000               R’000 

 Transfers and subsidies  2    

    

Department of Transport 25 619  22 489 

    

    

 2019  2018 

 R’000  R’000 

 Sale of goods and services 3    

 

Sale of goods & services  

Other income  

 

6 

92 

  

6 

95 

   

  Finance income 4

2019 

R’000 

  

2018 

R’000 

     

Interest income - Standard Bank 1 021  960 

   

           2019             2018 

           R’000             R’000 

 Administra�ve expenses 5    

    

Accoun�ng fee -  - 

Bank charges 21  18 

Entertainment -  - 

Internal audit 228  338 

Sta�onery and prinntg  628  174 

Subscrip�ons 54  53 

Training and staff development 595  238 

Venues and facili�es  144  132 

 1 670   953 
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 Staff costs  6 2019 

R’000 

 2018 

R’000 

    

Salaries and wages  11 765  11 519 

Performance bonus/awards  1 241  1 430  

Employer contribu�ons  814  767 

  13 820  13 716 

 

 Other opera�ng expenses  7    

   

Adver�sing 50  164 

Catering 67  50 

Communica�on costs 266  203 

Computer expenses                                                732  593 

Consultants 

Consumables 

411 

24 

 465 

29 

Couriers and delivery charges 2  8 

Data and informa�on storage 20  18 

Movement in leave pay provision 102  (41) 

Insurance 92  67 

Maintenance and repairs 15  18 

Motor vehicle expenses 11  7 

Municipal services 

Parking 

Security 

Training & development - Members 

191 

180 

5 

- 

 206 

161 

31 

72 

Travel, subsistence and disbursements 

Staff 

 

1 882 

  

1 831 

Travel, subsistence and disbursements 

Regulator members 

 587  1 224 

 4 637  5 106 

 
 Property,  plant and equipment  8     

2019 Cost  Accumulated 

depreciated 

 Carrying value 

 R’000  R’000  R’000 

     

Computer equipment 1 929  (1 302)  627 

Office furniture and  fi�ngs 967  (758)  209 

Books 74  (53)  21 

Motor vehicle 987  (47)  940 

 3 957  (2 160)  1 797 
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2018 Cost  Accumulated 

depreciated 

 Carrying value 

R’000  R’000  R’000 

    

Computer equipment 2 454  (1 451)  1 003 

Office furniture and  fi�ngs 981  (680)  301 

Books 74  (47)  27 

Motor vehicle 189  (91)  98 

 3 698  (2 269)  1 429 

     

Reconcilia�on of Property, Plant and 

Equipment for 31 March 2019 

Opening 

carrying 

value 

 Derecogniton   Addi�ons  Deprecia�on  Closing 

carrying 

value 

R’000  R’000  R’000  R’000  R’000 

         

Computer 

equipment 

Office furniture & 

fi�ngs 

Motor Vehicle 

Books

1 003 

 

301 

 

98 

27 

 (170) 

 

(4) 

 

(80) 

- 

 72 

 

66 

 

987 

- 

 (278) 

 

(154) 

 

(65) 

(6) 

 627 

 

209 

 

940 

21 

1 429  (254) 1 125  (503)  1 797 

Reconcilia�on of Property, Plant and 

Equipment 31 March 2018  
Computer 

equipment 

Office furniture & 

fi�ngs 

Motor Vehicle 

Books 

1 196 

 

397 

 

125 

34 

 (40) 

 

- 

 

- 

- 

 133 

 

2 

 

- 

- 

 (286) 

 

(98) 

 

(27) 

(7) 

 1 003 

 

301 

 

98 

27 

 1 752  (40) 135  (418)  1 429 

  

Derecogniton   Addi�ons  Deprecia�on  Closing 

carrying 

value 

R’000  R’000  R’000  R’000 
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GRAP 17 requires the en�ty to review the useful life for all classes of  Property, Plant and Equipment 

(PPE). The Regulator reviewed the useful lives and changed the es�mates for furniture and  fi�ngs. The 

reason for the change of the es�mate was as a result that the assets are kept beyond their ini�al 

es�mated useful lives. The Regulator did not revise the residual values since majority of assets are kept 

up un�l the end of their useful lives and there’s no inten�on to sell the assets at the end of their useful 

lives. The Regulator also could not reliably es�mate the value of the sale to be realised at the end of the 

asset’s useful life. 
 

 Intangible asset 9      

      

2019 Cost  Restated-

Accumulated 

amor�sa�on 

 Carrying 

value 

 R’000  R’000  R’000 

      

Computer so�ware 393  (371)  22 

      

 

Intangible assets       

2018 Cost  Accumulated 

amor�sa�on 

 Carrying 

value 

R’000  R’000  R’000 

      

Computer so�ware 416  (377)  39 
     

Reconciliaton of Intangible assets  

Computer so�ware at 31 March 2019 

  Opening 

carrying 

value 

 Disposal  Addi�ons  Amor�sa�on 

& 

Restatement 

 Closing 

carrying 

value 

R’000  R’000  R’000  R’000  R’000 

          

Computer so�ware 39  -  -  (17)  22 

39  - -  (17)  22  

Reconciliaton of Intangible assets  

Computer so�ware at 31 March 2018 

     

     

Opening 

carrying 

value 

 Disposal  Addi�ons  Amor�sa�on 

& 

Restatement 

 Closing 

carrying 

value 

R’000  R’000  R’000  R’000  R’000 
          

Computer so�ware 58  -  -  (19)  39 

58  - -  (19)  39 
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GRAP 31 requires the useful life  and the amor�sa�on method to be reviewed at the end of each 

period. The Regulator did not change the es�mate of the useful life of the intangible assets a�er 

realising that the assets will be kept for a period longer than had ini�ally es�mated. It was noted 

that all intangible assets have a nil carrying value  at the end of the previous financial year  however 

these assets incorporate the future economic benefit which would be experienced through the use 

of each asset as per the accoun�ng  policy of the en�ty . A reliable es�mate of the revised carrying 

amount could not be determined as an ac�ve  market for the intangible assets could not be 

iden�fied since these intangible assets are old and are not easily available for new buyers on the 

market based on their old model. The Regulator has not spent any funds to enhance the nature of 

the intangible assets nor spend any funds to prolong the useful life of the intangible assets. As a 

result, the amor�sa�on method of intangible assets was not changed. The reason for no change  is 

because the opera�ons of the en�ty may possibly change in the next 3 to 4 years of which these 

assets may no longer be used or its use modified when the change occurs. 

 Loans and receivables 10                2019                2018 

              R’000               R’000 

Non-current    

Deposit for car parking and lease 344  341 

   

Trade and other receivables11 2019 

R’000 

 2018 

R’000 

Prepaid expenditure  79 

  

109 

   

 Cash and cash equivalents  12 2019 

R’000 

 2018 

R’000 

Bank balances    

Standard bank cheque account 154  301 

Standard bank Investment account 17 407  14 986 

 17 561  15 287 

 Trade and other payables 13                 2019                2018 

                R’000              R’000 

     

Accruals  793  653 

Receiver of Revenue 

Discovery medical aid 

Total Movements 

 - 

24 

- 

 - 

24 

- 

- Amounts receivable at beginning of the year  -  - 

- Transac�ons for the year  -  - 

     

  817  677 
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The en�ty has considered payables discoun�ng as required by the standards of GRAP, the en�ty has a 

policy and is required by legisla�on to pay all outstanding invoices within the 30 days period. This has 

resulted on the payables discoun�ng not being necessary to be applied. 

   Opera�ng lease commitments 14
 

The Ports Regulator entered into a three year opera�ng lease agreement with Delta Property Fund  that 

commenced on 1 October 2016 for R 128 146.90  per month including VAT     with an escala�on clause of 8% 

annually. The lease will expire on 30 September 2019. 

 

Minimum lease payments due 2019 

R’000 

 2018 

R’000 

   

  - not later than one year   905    1 742 

  - later than one year and not later than five 

years  

 -   905 

  - later than five years -  - 

 905  2 624 

 

 Provisions 15 2019 

R’000 

 2018 

R’000 

    

Carrying amount at the beginning of the period  485  526 

Addi�onal provisions made in the current period 102  - 

Amount u�lised in the current period -  (41) 

Carrying amount at the end of period                 587                 485 

     

Provisions comprises the value of leave days 

owing to employees and legal costs as at 31 

March 2019. 

    

 Cash generated from opera�ons16                 2019                  2018 

                R’000                 R’000     

Surplus/(Deficit) for the period  2 356   (501)     

Non-cash items 907  556 

Deprecia�on  503  418 

Amor�sa�on  17  19 

(Gain) / Loss on sale of assets  118  (14) 

Working capital changes     

Increase / (Decrease) in payables  140  153 

(Decrease) / Increase in provisions  102  (41) 

(Increase) / Decrease  in receivables  30  (56) 

(Increase) / Decrease in inventory 

Other working capital movements 

 - 

(3) 

 - 

77 

Net cash flow from opera�ng ac�vi�es 3 263  55 
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2019 

R’000 

 

2018 

R’000 

 Regulator Members’ Remunera�on 17 No of 

individuals 

 

Members 08* 797 1 371 

All Regulator Members’ term came into an end on 

30th November 2018. 

Regulator Members’ Remunera�on  

 

Member 
2019 
R’000 

2018 
R’000 

 

T Tsautse 102 198 

A Ngcobo 131 143 

A Mahlalutye 105 145 

P Mazibuko - 2 

D Thwala - 19 

T Mufamadi 11 121 

A Hirachund 123 198 

G Taylor 101 152 

G Thimane 131 268 

R Khan - 29 

L Mabandla 93 96 

Total 797 1 371 
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 Execuitve  18 No of individuals 2019 

R’000 

 2018 

R’000 

    

3 5 852  5 893 

     

  

Marissa Damons *(Execu�ve Legal Manager) 
2019 

R’000 

2018 

R’000 

Basic Salary - 873 

Performance Bonus - 210 

Ac�ng Allowance - - 

Taxable allowance - 338 

Medical Aid Allowance - 37 

Total - 1 458 

   *Ms. Marissa Damons resigned effec�ve 01 March 2018. 

 

Adv. Sohana Goordeen **(Ac�ng Execu�ve Legal Manager) 2019 

R’000 

2018 

R’000 

Basic Salary 1 014 475 

Performance Bonus 168 - 

Actng Allowance 178 - 

Taxable allowance - - 

Medical Aid Allowance - - 

Total 1 360 475 

   **Adv. Sohana Goordeen was appointed as the Ac�ng Execu�ve Legal Manager effec�ve 01 April 2018. 

 

Thokozani Mhlongo (Chief Financial Officer) 2019 

R’000 

2018 

R’000 

Basic Salary 786 744 

Performance Bonus - 229 

Taxable allowance 475 450 

 

 

Member’s Remunera�on

 
Medical Aid Allowance 52 46 

Total 1 313 1 469 

Mahesh Fakir ( Chief Execu�ve Officer) 
2019 

R’000 

2018 

R’000 

Basic Salary 1 932 1 828 

Taxable Allowance 780 728 

Performance Bonus 419 362 

Travel Allowance 48 48 

Total 3 179 2 966 
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 Con�ngent liabili�es 19

In terms of sec�on 53(3) of the PFMA, a public en�ty may not accumulate surplus funds without approval 

from the Na�onal      Treasury. Approval has been requested from the Na�onal Treasury to retain surplus 

amoun�ng to R 16 236 000; however, the en�ty is s�ll awai�ng approval. In the last 5 years the Na�onal 

Treasury has allowed the reten�on of surplus funds. This disclosure was made as per request of the 

Auditor General. 

  

 Recognized subsequent events 20

There were no post balance sheet  date events as at 31 March 2019 that required amendment to the 

neither the annual financial statements nor disclosure on the notes to the financial statements. 

 

 Reconcilia�on of budget surplus/deficit with Statement of Financial Performance 21

Ports Regulator presents its approved budget on a cash basis and the financial statements on the 

accrual basis. 

Economic 

Classifica�on 
Reason for Variance 

Revenue 

Transfers  N/A 

Interest 

Received 
Interest is based on the investment balance kept by the en�ty 

Sundry income The en�ty received a bill of cost for the ma�er that was taken on review.  

Sale of goods & 

services 

There were two complaints/appeals that were submi�ed to the en�ty during 

the financial year. 

  

Expenses 

Deprecia�on & 

amor�sa�on 
Difference was caused by some planned purchases that did not take place. 

Staff costs 

Unspent expenditure arose due to delays in appointment of the Exec Legal 

Manager post and the performance assessment of the CFO was conducted 

a�er the financial year end. 

General 

expenses 

The en�ty was allowed to retain unspent surplus funds; therefore majority of 

expenditure was on projects that were partly funded by the unspent funds. 

 

 

 
Capital Budget  

Property Plant 

and equipment 

A new company car was purchased during the year and office furniture such as 

chairs and cupboards were acquired since most of the office furniture that was 

purchased in 2008 was ancient to use and was disposed during the year.  
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2019 

   

2018 

  R’000    R’000 

 Unauthorised, irregular and fruitless and wasteful expenditure 22    

Opening balance 116  - 

Irregular expenditure current year 1 361  116 

Less: Amounts condoned -  - 

Less: Amounts recoverable -  - 

Less: Amounts not recoverable -  - 

Adjustment to prior period -  - 

Irregular expenditure 1 477  116 

 

The disclosure of the irregular expenditure was made on request from Auditor General. 

  23 Taxa�on 

 

No provision is made for taxa�on as the en�ty is exempt from taxa�on per Sec�on 10(1) a of the 

Income tax Act, Act No 58 of 1962. 

 

 Risk management 24 2019 2018 

Interest rate risk 

As the en�ty has no significant interest -bearing assets, the en�ty’s 

income and opera�ng cash flows are substan�ally independent of 

changes in market interest rates. 

 

Liquidity risk 2019 2018 

The en�ty’s risk to liquidity is a result of the funds available to cover 

future commitments. The en�ty manages liquidity risk through an 

ongoing review of future commitments and credit facili�es. 

Cash flow forecasts are prepared and adequate u�lised borrowing 

facili�es are monitored. 

The en�ty relies solely on transfers from the parent Department of 

Transport. These transfers are transferred by the department to the 

en�ty at the beginning of each quarter to fund the cash flows for that 

specific quarter. Any delays in transfers may cause cash flow risks to the 

en�ty. The table below analyses the en�ty’s finance liabilites into 

relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the 

Statement of Financial Posi�on to the contractual maturity date. The 

amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash 

flows 

Not later than one month 2019 

R’000 
 

2018 

R’000 

 817 677 Payables
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Maximum credit risk exposure 

 

2019 

R’000 

2018 

R’000 

Credit risk consists mainly of cash deposits, cash equivalents. The en�ty 

only deposits cash with major banks with high quality credit standing 

and limits exposure to any one counter-party. 

 

  

The financial assets carried at amor�sed cost expose the en�ty to credit 

risk. The value of the maximum exposure to credit risk are as follows for 

each of the classes of financial assets at amor�sed cost: 

 

Cash and cash equivalents 17 561 15 287 

Trade and other receivables from exchange transac�ons 79 109 

The en�ty has sufficient insurance cover and sufficient funds to service its financial liabili�es. 

 

 Related party transac�ons 25

There were  related party transac�ons rela�ng to the transfers of funds from the Department of 

Transport to Ports Regulator as per the voted funds in the appropria�on statement:  

 

Descrip�on of transac�on 
2019 

R’000 

2018 

R’000 

Transfers from the Department of Transport  25 619 22 489 

26       Audit Fees 2019 

R’000 

2018 

R’000 

Audit fees relates to the payments made to Auditor General 

for the Regularity audit.                   

 

    348    319 

27       Legal Fees 2019 

R’000 

2018 

R’000 

Legal fees cons�tutes of tribunal proceedings. 

 

28     Changes in Accoun�ng Es�mates 

    800      499 

 
The Regulator during  the financial year  changed the accoun�ng es�mates for furniture &  fi�ngs, 

the change in accoun�ng es�mates was made a�er careful considera�on of the GRAP standard 

requirements to review the useful life of the assets every year. The Regulator has kept its different 

class of assets far beyond their ini�al es�mated  useful life which is indica�on that the useful life 

must be reviewed as required by the standards of GRAP. The Regulator did not change the residual 

value of zero % for all class of assets.  These assets have no ac�ve market at the end of their useful 

lives thus no value can be realised at the end of their useful life. The effect of  the change in 

accoun�ng es�mate is as follows:  

R’000 

Statement of changes in net assets 

Prior year adjustment 230 


